
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson
e-mail:              peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Tuesday, 8th March 2016

Dear Councillor,

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held in the 
Training and Conference Suite on the first floor of the Council Offices, 
Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Wednesday, 
16th March 2016, commencing at 6.15pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Membership 2015/16
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Michael  Holly
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Terry Linden
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Ann Stott JP
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor June West
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 16th March 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, 
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 3 - 7

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 4th 
February 2016.

3.  Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2015/2016 

8 - 16

4.  Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership - Monitoring - Quarter 
3 - 2015/16 

17 - 52

5.  Rochdale Development Agency Quarter 3 - 2015/16 - 
Performance Monitoring Report 

53 - 95

6.  Street Lighting PFI Quarterly Update 

Director of Neighbourhoods to report.

7.  GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool 96 - 109

To note the minutes of the meetings held 15th January and 12th 
February 2016.



8.  Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended.

9.  Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2015/2016 (Appendix 
4) 

110 - 112

Notes of an Informal session of Committee Members held 29th 
February 2016



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 2



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 4th February 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Butterworth (in the Chair); Councillors Holly, Linden, 
O’Rourke, Rashid, Stott, and West.

OFFICERS:  M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), J. Searle (Director of 
Economy), D. Bowler, A. Glover, S. Miah (Neighbourhoods Directorate), M. Robinson 
(Economy Directorate), M. Hardman and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor D. Ali (Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
and Communities) and A. Wadsworth (Rochdale Boroughwide Housing).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Kelly, O’Neill, Wazir and Zaheer. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
55 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
56 The Committee considered the minutes of its meeting held 10th December 
2015. Further to Minute 50 (Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership Monitoring), a 
Member referred to the issue of the Partnership and queried when this might be 
resolved? The Committee was advised that the issue had been raised elsewhere and 
if not amended would be included as a part of the appointments report to the Annual 
meeting of the Council on 16th May 2016.  

DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 10th December 2015 
be approved as a correct record.

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016
57 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
Reform which presented the Committee’s Work Programme for 2015/2016.

The Director of Neighbourhoods verbally updated the Committee on the flooding 
incident that occurred in Rochdale town centre and other parts of the Borough on 26th 
December 2015. The Director added that a report on this matter would be presented 
to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s meeting on 30th March 2016.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Director of Neighbourhood’s commitment to report to the 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 30th March 2016 on the 
flooding incident in the Rochdale Borough on 26th December 2015 be noted.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
58 DECIDED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following three items of business since it is likely that, in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, if members of the public were present there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt information, namely information relating to the business or 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



financial affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information).

UPDATE ON COMMUNITY COHESION HUB ACTIVITIES IN ROCHDALE 
BOROUGH
59 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods that 
updated Members on recent activity and initiatives undertaken and commissioned by 
the Cohesion Hub to promote community cohesion and engagement in Rochdale 
Borough, further to a request made by the Committee at its meeting on 23rd 
September 2015.

In considering the report the Committee noted that some Members had submitted 
detailed questions on this issue in advance of the meeting’ including requests about 
where to register hate crime and efforts being made to increase confidence and 
satisfaction within the borough’s various communities.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

ASYLUM DISPERSAL IN ROCHDALE AND ACROSS GREATER MANCHESTER
60 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
provided an update on issues relating to Asylum dispersal across the Borough. The 
report was submitted further to an informal session of attended by Members of the 
former Overview and Scrutiny Committee that was held in April 2015.

Members of the Committee in considering the report sought clarification on reports of 
authorities being able to refuse to take in asylum seekers, housing amenity support 
provided to asylum seekers and on the number of refugees that might be attempting 
to arrive from Syria either directly or indirectly.

A Member of the Committee requested that the Council, when making decisions 
about taking in Syrian refugees in the future, should also take into consideration the 
number of asylum seekers that Rochdale currently has across the Borough and the 
effect that this is already having on service provision in terms of health and education 
for example.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Council, when making decisions about taking in Syrian refugees 

in the future, should also take into consideration the number of asylum seekers 
that Rochdale currently has across the Borough and the effect that this is 
already having on service provision.

HIGHWAYS SHARED SERVICE - OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE
61 The Director of Neighbourhoods verbally updated the Committee on 
proposals to create a Greater Manchester wide Highways Shared Service. The aim 
was that a number of the Greater Manchester Authorities would collaborate for the 
delivery of local highways services. The contributing authorities this far were Bury, 
Rochdale, Stockport and Transport for Greater Manchester, for the purpose of 
supporting an increase in capital infrastructure work across the region and an effort 
to make sure that the right skills were in place to deliver a good quality service to 
each local authority and to ensure future resilience for each authority.

The Director of Neighbourhoods advised that the proposals were subject to staff 
engagement and advised that any comments that Members of this Committee 
wished to make on the proposals would be used to help preparation of the Final 
Business Case that was scheduled for Member Approval around June 2016. The 

Page 4



Director of Neighbourhoods undertook to circulate to Members of the Committee the 
Outline Business Case for a shared highways service for Greater Manchester that 
had been prepared by Transport for Greater Manchester.    

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

READMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
62 DECIDED – That the press and public be readmitted to the meeting.

RBH PERFORMANCE REPORT
63 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods which 
provided Members with an update on the performance of Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing (RBH) for quarters 1 and 2 in (April – September) 2015/16 in relation to the 
achievement of the aspirations, commitments and promises set out in the Council’s 
Service Level Agreement with RBH. Promises were initiatives or projects that RBH 
had committed to deliver. Commitments were described as pre-transfer service levels 
that RBH were required to maintain and aspirations were things that RBH would like 
to do, but were not guaranteed to do so as there was no specific funding in its 
business plan and delivery may be adversely affected by issues such as the impact 
of welfare reform. The report also provided some additional key performance 
information and updated Members on the organisations mutualisation process, 
development programme and on how RBH is working in partnership with the Council, 
local agencies.

The Committee in considering the report sought clarification on the rates at which 
RBH charged for rechargeable repairs; the ‘turnaround’ periods for recently vacated 
properties (which Members were advised was overall 43 days per property); and the 
review exercise for the funding of Tenants and Residents Associations, which it was 
requested that RBH be asked to clarify.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Chief Executive of Rochdale Boroughwide Housing be requested 

to write to the Tenants and Residents Associations across the Borough 
clarifying their funding arrangements.   

DIRECTORATE PLANS 2015-16: QUATER3 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
64 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods that 
presented details of progress in the third quarter of 2105/2016 (October - December) 
towards targets contained in the Neighbourhoods Directorate and the Economy 
Directorate Plans for 2015/16.

The Director of Economy updated Members on the proposed Solar Farm at Chamber 
House Farm, Heywood, which he advised would not now be progressed due to 
changes imposed by the government to the subsidy regime.  However he undertook 
to keep residents in the area updated on any future developments. In considering the 
report a Member requested that all future meetings of the Rochdale Township 
Planning Sub-Committee be attended by a Legal Officer due to the contentious 
nature of a large proportion of applications that are considered by that Sub-
Committee.

The Director of Neighbourhoods updated the Committee on the flooding incident that 
caused much damage to Rochdale, including the town centre and to parts of the 
Pennines Township on 26th December 2015. He advised of how the floods had 
affected the Council’s ICT system, leading to a temporary shut-down of the Council’s 
computer network and the Borough’s Emergency Plan had been adapted in light of 

Page 5



experiences caused by the flooding incident. The Director also reported upon 
improved refuse collection rates and procedures for the procurement of school meals 
contracts.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK
65 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy that informed 
Members of the current progress in the joint preparation by the Association of 
Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) of the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework (the GMSF) as a new statutory development planning document to guide 
spatial planning across the city region until 2035. The report also informed Members 
of the current consultation which is taking place on a draft vision, strategic objectives 
and growth options for the GMSF and the opportunities for communities, businesses 
and elected Members to engage in this process. 

The report identified the main issues that would affect Rochdale Borough including 
evidence suggesting that the levels of housing need across Greater Manchester will 
be significantly higher than the current housing requirements set out within the 
Districts’ existing local plans or strategies; the Core Strategy sought to manage the 
supply of land for housing and employment over a period until 2028; the existing 
supply of, and potential opportunities for, additional, industry and warehousing land; 
the need to build on the potential opportunities afforded by devolution and initiatives 
such as the Northern Powerhouse to enhance the economic role of Greater 
Manchester including Rochdale Borough; transport infrastructure will be a high 
priority both in terms of improvements to the strategic road and rail networks and 
orbital connectivity to ensure the Borough’s residents have access to the key areas 
of economic growth; and the consultation document stated that Greater Manchester 
recognises the importance of Green Belt and usable green space in creating 
neighbourhoods where people want to live.

In considering the report the Committee noted that some Members had submitted 
detailed questions on this issue in advance of the meeting, in particular raising 
concerns about proposals for new housing developments to infringe on green belt 
land. In response to this the Committee were advised, given the projections of 
population and household growth,  the GMSF options consultation suggested a scale 
of growth required to be accommodated across Greater Manchester for the period 
until at least 2035, and alternative spatial options as to how this might be 
accommodated.  The priority in the consultation was to see the reuse of vacant and 
brownfield sites within the urban areas.  However, to develop a full view of current 
and future land use within Greater Manchester and spatial options, an assessment of 
all types of land would be made, including a collective assessment of current Green 
Belt land.  The assessment will look at land currently designated as Green Belt 
across all Districts to see how well it performs against the Green Belt purposes. This 
would be just one part of a wide range of evidence which will be used to develop 
options for the draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework to be published for 
consultation in late 2016.  

DECIDED – That the report be noted. 

GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL
66 The Committee considered the minutes of the meetings of the GMCA/AGMA 
Scrutiny Pool held 9th October and 11th December 2015. In considering the minutes 
of these two meetings Members noted the poor attendance by some other Greater 
Manchester authorities, especially in light of the significant issues that were on the 

Page 6



agendas of such meetings. The Committee also asked that the Councillor 
Rowbotham, as lead scrutiny member, for the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool be 
requested to report to the next meeting of the Council on 6th April 2016 regarding the 
activities of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool.

DECIDED – That (1) the minutes of the meetings of the AGMA Scrutiny Pool 
held 9th October and 11th December 2015, be noted;

(2) the Chair of this Committee be requested to make representations to 
the Chair of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool about the lack of representation 
from some other authorities in Greater Manchester. 

Page 7



Subject: Committee Work Programme 2015/16 Status:  Publication

Report to: Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny  Committee 

Date: 16th March 2016
 

Report of: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance 
& Workforce)
Author Email:   peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

Author: Peter Thompson 

Tel: 01706 924715

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the updated Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16, including the Committee’s Action List. 
In addition the Committee has held two informal sessions relating to Discretionary 
Crisis Fund and developments at Rochdale Town Centre East that were held on the 4th 
and 29th February respectively. The minutes of these meetings are attached at 
Appendices 3 and 4 (with Appendix 4 on the private agenda).

2 Recommendations

2.1       That the Committee note the Work Programme 2015/16 and the Actions List;

2.2       the Committee notes the notes of an informal meeting of the Committee’s Members 
relating to the Discretionary Crisis Fund that was held on 4th February 2016

2.3      the Committee notes the notes of an informal session held on 29th February 2016 
relating to Rochdale Town Centre East, attached on the private agenda at item 9 

Reason for recommendation

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
to set a work programme and to report it to the Council.

3 Background

3.1 The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, the principal role 
of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and skills aspects of 
economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as leisure, 
highways, housing, environmental services etc, that provide the opportunities for work 
and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s communities.

3.2 Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

3.3 The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive decisions 
made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with scheduling 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these functions.  The 
Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can request further 
business to come forward.  

3.4 Officers will continue to work with the Committee members in developing the work 
programme, up to and beyond the required submission to the full Council. 

Alternatives considered

None

4 Financial Implications

4.1 None

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The development of an Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is a requirement of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within the Council’s 
Constitution.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 None

7. Risk Assessment Implications 

7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this report

8. Equalities Impacts

8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers to this report
 

Page 9



APPENDIX 1

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2015/2016 

1. The Work Programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2015/2016 has 
been compiled mindful of the key scrutiny functions that are set out in the Local 
Government Act 2000 and subsequent legislation and as set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain 
an oversight of the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally 
through the following means:-
 

 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

2. The Committee’s Work Programme has been prepared on the basis of known 
items at this time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined.  
This particularly includes Study Groups and informal sessions of the Committee 
membership where issues remain to be determined and scheduled.  

3. A review of the “routine” performance reporting arrangements has been 
requested by Leadership Team members and this will be considered through 
initial meetings of the Committees and through discussions with the respective 
Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs

4. The following table highlights issues where there is either an agreement or an 
anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will be brought 
forward as indicated above.

9th July 2015

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2015/2016

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring (4th Quarter 
2014/2015) – including:
 Link4Life
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership
 Rochdale Development Agency 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing – six 
month update report

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2014/2015)
 Economy and Environment  

Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 10



23rd September 2015

Work Programme 2015/2016 To note the Committee’s Work Programme 
for 2015/2016

Call-in: Sandy Lane Traffic Calming, 
Rochdale

Call-in of a decision made by Rochdale 
Township Action and Resources Committee

Performance Monitoring (1st Quarter 
2015/2016) – including:
 Street Lighting PFI Contract
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership
 Rochdale Development Agency

Performance management and monitoring

GM Transport Strategy 2040 Presentation by TfGM on transport 
proposals affecting the Borough

Directorate Plan Update (1st Quarter 
2015/2016)

 Economy and Environment  
Directorate

 Customers & Corporate 
Directorate (Community 
Services)

Performance management and monitoring

RSCP Safer Communities Plan 2015-
2018

Consultation on proposals

Public Protection Enforcement Policy Committee request
Playing Pitch and Formal Sports 
Strategy

Consultation on proposals

29th October 2015

Work Programme 2015/2016 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Performance Monitoring 

 Rochdale Development 
Agency

Performance management and monitoring

Food and Feed Plan 2015/16 Consultation on proposals
Corporate Priority Setting - Survey 
and Process

Consultation on proposals

Directorate Plan Update (1st Quarter 
2015/2016)

 Economy and Environment  
Directorate

 Community Services

Performance monitoring and management

Directorate Plan 2015/16
 Economy and Environment  

Directorate
 Customers and Corporate 

Directorate (Community Services)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Presentation and report - Key Route 
Network

Consultation

Housing Allocations Policy Performance management and 
monitoring

Registered Housing Providers – 
Annual Report

Committee request

Page 11



Performance Monitoring of Registered 
Provider Partners

Scrutiny of performance

Rochdale Town Centre East 
Redevelopment Update

Update on Cabinet proposals

10th December 2015

Work Programme 2015/2016 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Performance Monitoring (2nd Quarter 
2015/16) – including:
 Link4Life
 Street Lighting PFI Contract
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership

Performance monitoring and management

Gambling Licensing Policy Consultation on statutory legislation
Licensing Policy Update Consultation on statutory legislation
Discretionary Crisis Fund – six 
monthly update

Performance management and scrutiny

Update on Community Cohesion Committee request
Contract for Rochdale CAB 2015/16 Consultation on proposals
Report on Asylum Seekers in the 
Borough

A report requested from a one-off meeting 
held in April by the former Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

3rd February 2016 

Work Programme 2015/2016 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals 
 
Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2015/2016)
Neigbourbourhoods and Economy 
Directorates

Performance monitoring and management

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing – six 
month update report

Performance monitoring and management

Report on Asylum Seekers in the 
Borough

A report requested from a one-off meeting 
held in April by the former Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, and deferred from the 
last meeting.

Update on Community Cohesion Committee request – deferred from the last 
meeting.

Highways Shared Service – Outline 
Business Case 

Update on proposals – deferred from last 
meeting

Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework

Consultation on proposals 

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool: minutes 
of meetings held October and 
December 2015

For information/discussion

16th March 2016 

Work Programme Update

Page 12



Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring (3rd Quarter 
2015/2016) – including:
 Street Lighting PFI Contract
 Rochdale Safer Communities 

Partnership
 Rochdale Development Agency

Performance management and monitoring

Other issues:

a. Informal meeting of Members of the Committee regarding Town Centre East 
developments, a second meeting was held on 29th February 2016 the notes 
of which are attached at agenda item 9 on the agenda) and a third meeting 
has requested to be convened in approximately six months.

b. Discretionary Crisis Fund – an informal of members was held on 4th February 
2016 and the notes are attached at Appendix 3.

c. Joint meeting with Audit and Governance Committee (Greater Manchester 
Devolution) to be convened.

Page 13



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Actions List 

MINUTE 
NO/ISSUE.

ACTION LEAD TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Reporting 
Format

Revisions to the Committee’s reporting 
format  

The RDA performance reporting  
format be approved and used as an 
exemplar of the performance report 
format the Committee would prefer to 
see used in the future by the Council’s 
partner agencies when submitting 
performance related reports to the 
Committee

David Wilcock Revised 
format to be 
introduced on 
a rolling basis

Ongoing

Greater 
Manchester 
Combined 
Authority

The Committee requested a joint 
meeting with the Audit and Governance 
Committee, and the Chief Executive to 
pursue issues relating to the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. 
Officers are currently consulting with 
the Chief Executive on this matter

Chief Executive Ongoing Ongoing

Rochdale Safer 
Communities 
Partnership

Statistical Surveys that are carried out 
at Ward level be no longer used in the 
compilation of these reports.
Future reports include specific 
statistical details relating to recorded 
instances of violent crime.

A Report detailing specific efforts to 

Andy Glover Ongoing To be included in future 
RSCP reports.

P
age 14



improve community cohesion in the 
Borough be submitted to a future 
meeting of this Committee

Future Safer Community Partnership 
Quarterly Performance report be jointly 
presented by Council Officers along 
with senior GMP representatives and 
the relevant Portfolio Holder.

Rochdale Safer 
Communities 
Partnership – 
membership 
issues

Clarification of the membership of the 
Partnership, especially in terms of the 
lack of Middleton representation

Committee Services to advise the 
Partnership of this matter

Andy Glover to 
meet 
appropriate 
Councillor(s) 

Rochdale 
Development 
Agency

Future reports to the Committee 
include more detailed information 
relating to the red (RAG) rated items 
listed in the appendix to the submitted 
report.

Director of Economy/Susan Ayres To be included 
in future RDA 
reports, 
performance 
reports to the 
Committee, 
commencing 
on 16th March 
2016

Discretionary 
Crisis Fund

An informal session of the Committee’s 
membership advising of the processes 
and procedures appertaining to the 
Discretionary Crisis Fund

Helen Bellis 4th February 
2016

Food and Feed 
Plan

Review of the Food  Plan, content and 
presentation  

Peter Thompson/Andy Glover At 
presentation of 
the 2016/17 
Plan (autumn 
2016)

Rochdale Town 
Centre East

A second informal meeting of Director of Economy Meeting to be 
held on 29th 

P
age 15



Committee members to discuss 
confidential reports that were submitted 
to Cabinet in March and September 
2016

February 
2016, with a 
further 
meeting 
planned for 
autumn 2016

Street Lighting 
PFI Contract

Future reports to include details of the 
new complaints procedure.

The next Update report to include 
details of work that CLP and E.ON are 
undertaking, and/or intend to 
undertake, to address concerns that 
Members have raised in relation to the 
poor quality of work being carried out.

The Update report includes details of 
the sample size of surveys undertaken 
to gauge customer satisfaction with the 
service.

Street Lighting PFI Contract 
Manager

16th March 
2016

P
age 16



Subject: 
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership – 
Monitoring
Quarter 3, 1st October 2015 – 31st December 2015

Status:  For Publication

Report to:  Overview & Scrutiny Committee Date: 16th March 2016  

Report of:  Andy Glover, Safer Communities 
(Customers & Corporate Services)

Email: andy.glover@rochdale.gov.uk

Tel: (01706) 924105

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Janet Emsley, Portfolio Holder for Culture, Health and Wellbeing                                 
                               Councillor Daalat Ali, Portfolio Holder for Neighbourhoods and Community  
Comments from 
Statutory Officers:

Section 151 Officer No
Monitoring Officer No

Key Decision:   No

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 The Performance Management Bulletin attached to this report provides 
members with a detailed summary of how the Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership is performing against its targets for Quarter 3 2015 / 2016 (October 
2015 – December 2015).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that members note, and are invited to comment upon, the 
Performance Management Bulletin. 

3.         BACKGROUND

3.1 The RSCP is a statutory partnership in the borough of Rochdale with 
responsibility for ensuring that the borough is a safer place.  In 2010/2011 the 
Partnership launched a new 3 year plan.  The Safer Communities Partnership 
plan has 7 strategic priorities as follows:

o Increase confidence and satisfaction
o Reduce crime
o Reduce the harm caused by drugs and alcohol
o Prevent and tackle anti–social behaviour
o Prevent offending (and re-offending) by children and young people

ITEM NO.

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



o Prevent adult re-offending
o Develop community cohesion

4 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BULLETIN

4.1 The Safer Communities Partnership plan identifies around 40 targets to be achieved.  
These targets are achieved through the implementation of annual, multi- agency action 
plans which are written for each of the strategic priorities.  

4.2 Each quarter the RSCP compiles a performance bulletin.  The bulletin looks at both 
the performance in relation to targets and the actions implemented as part of the multi-
agency action plans.  The performance bulletin is used by the RSCP to highlight areas 
of good practice/performance and also to understand under-performance so that 
corrective action can be identified and implemented.

Alternatives considered

Not applicable – failure to monitor and report performance against targets would not 
be acceptable.

Consultation proposed/undertaken

Extensive consultation has been undertaken with the community, staff and members 
of the Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership (RSCP) in determining the priorities 
for the partnership.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no financial implications

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 These statistics in this report are an important part of the monitoring and 
enforcement process carried out by the Council's Community Safety Officers 
alongside its partners and that the Council is using the procedures set out 
in the new Anti- Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 and the 
Home Office Guidance appropriately.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

7.1      There are no personnel implications

8. RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this 
report.

9.  EQUALITIES IMPACTS

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising form this report.

Page 18



9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments - there are no significant 
equality/community issues arising from this report

Page 19



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – HIGHLIGHTS AND EXCEPTIONS

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 1 – INCREASE CONFIDENCE & SATISFACTION

Highlights and Exceptions

No significant changes from last quarter.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 2 – REDUCE CRIME

Highlights and Exceptions

 The total of theft crimes reduced notably in quarter 3, good news given that it takes in 
the Christmas period and run-up to it

 Although domestic burglary volumes remained fairly similar, we saw a good reduction 
in non-domestic burglary figures

 After a sharp rise in vehicle crimes in quarter 2, numbers fell back to more usual levels 
in quarter 3

 Violent crime numbers remained fairly static this quarter  

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 3 – REDUCE THE HARM CAUSED BY DRUGS AND 
ALCOHOL

Highlights and Exceptions – Drugs

 Following an 18 month decline in numbers in drug treatment, (DA1) has now ceased, 
we have now seen an increase for 5 consecutive months.  

DA 5: Reduce the Drug related (Class A) offending rate

 DA5 shows that there have been 69 offences committed by 45 offenders during 
quarter 3.  This accounts for 9% of the cohort.  Although quarter one saw an increase 
the past 2 quarters have seen it fall to the lowest rate since the measure began in 
2013, bringing us back on track to see an annual improvement. What is most 
significant is that the total number of offences in Rochdale has increased meaning that 
only 1.5% of offences this quarter were committed by this cohort.

Highlights and Exceptions – Alcohol

 Some really positive news is that DA 10, Alcohol related Hospital admissions have 
fallen again. 

 This is a significant 22% improvement on the same 6 months in 2014 and has seen a 
continued fall now for 4 consecutive quarters.  Across GM – 8 of the 10 areas have 
seen a fall (except Tameside and Stockport) – however Rochdale’s improvement is 
much greater than any other area.

 We are now starting to see an improvement in the numbers engaging in alcohol 
treatment when several areas are seeing a decline in numbers.  However, even 
though we have already exceeded the performance for all 2014/15 we are still off track 
to achieve this years target.

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 4 – PREVENT AND TACKLE ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

Highlights and Exceptions

Page 20



 Anti-social behaviour incidents reduced markedly during Q3. Although this is generally 
in line with usual trends each year, it is nevertheless noteworthy. 

 Criminal damage and arson incidents were also down, though the higher figures 
recorded in Qs 1and 2 will mean that we will end the year with a small overall increase 
on last year.

 A similar picture can be seen with deliberate primary fires. The number recorded in Q3 
has fallen, though the Q1 and Q2 figures mean that we will end the year slightly up on 
last year 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 5 – PREVENT OFFENDING BY CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE

Highlights and exceptions

 Re YP3, in terms of the overall NEET cohort, the rate for December 2015 was 4.1%, 
which was the target figure for the commissioned provider to attain. The quarterly 
figure of 4.2% is slightly below the 4.3% target, which is due to the shortfall in 
November which has now been rectified. 

 Of this overall cohort, of those leaving Further Education to become NEET the 
quarterly target was 83 young people; this has been successfully achieved, with just 
66 young people leaving FE to become NEET. 

 In terms of the worst performing wards (West Middleton and West Heywood), the 
NEET rate is 7.0% against a target of 6.2%. The quarterly figure is 7.3% against a 
target of 6.2%. There are three wards (West Middleton, West Heywood and Hopwood 
Hall) that are above the target for December.  The commissioned provider is already 
looking at how they deploy staff across the borough to ensure that these wards receive 
additional resources, while trying to make sure that any changes to not adversely 
affect other wards

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 6 – REDUCE ADULT RE-OFFENDING

Highlights and exceptions

 Alcohol Treatment Requirement success rate is now 100%
 Intensive community Orders – completion rates remain good but number of 

new orders is falling

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 7 – DEVELOPING COMMUNITY COHESION

Highlights and exceptions

 The number of Hate Crime incidents reported during this quarter appear to have 
reduced, but when compared to the same period in 2014/15 it is considerably higher. 
A number of initiatives to rasie awareness of the need to report Hate crime and the 
different methods in which people can do so have taken place during this quarter. 

 New and revised performance indicators have been developed to monitor the number 
of Channel referrals, open cases and closed cases.  During this quarter  there  were  4 

Page 21



open cases however by the end of the quarter Rochdale Borough had 2 Channel open 
cases.

 Consultation was also undertaken on the Channel Panel Policy with the key 
stakeholders through Rochdale Borough’s Prevent Steering Group and Rochdale’s 
Channel Panel.  This Policy will be placed in the Policy Centre and arrangements will 
be put in place to raise staff awareness of this policy.

 An audit has been undertaken by RBSAB and RBSCB to assess the arrangements 
which agencies have in place to meet the new Prevent Duty.  The findings of this 
audit are currently being analysed and a report is being prepared.

Page 22



1

1

 

Performance Bulletin
JANUARY 2016

                                                                                                                       

Page 23



2

2

Contents

Page

Part 1 Introduction                                                                                3
Purpose of document
Data sources
Key to abbreviations
Definitions

Part 2 Performance by Strategic Priority

Priority 1 - Increase Confidence & Satisfaction
Highlights, exceptions, Action Plan update
Performance tables

4  

Priority 2 - Reduce Crime
Highlights, exceptions, Action Plan update 
Performance tables

7

Priority 3 - Reduce the harm caused by Drugs & Alcohol
Highlights, exceptions, Action Plan update
Performance tables

10

Priority 4 - Prevent and Tackle Anti-social Behaviour
Highlights, exceptions, Action Plan update
Performance tables

14

Priority 5 - Prevent Offending by Children & Young People
Highlights, exceptions, Action Plan update
Performance tables

18

Priority 6 - Reduce Adult Re-offending
Highlights, exceptions, Action Plan update
Performance tables

21

Priority 7 - Develop Community Cohesion 23

Appendix A Crime by Ward (22 ward results) 26
Appendix B Drug & Alcohol definitions 29

Page 24



3

3

PART 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Purpose of document

This is the third Performance Bulletin of 2015-2016, covering performance during 
Quarter 3, i.e. from 1st October 2015 to 31st December 2015 inclusive. 

1.2 Data Sources

Data contained in this bulletin has been sourced from: Greater Manchester Police 
(Divisional and Force data), Drug and Alcohol Action Team, Youth Offending Team, 
Youth Service, National Probation Service, GM Fire & Rescue Service, Greater 
Manchester & Cheshire CRC, and the Community Safety Service.

1.3 Key to shading – Status Progress against Overall Target column 

On Track (against this year’s target)
Just Off Track (against this year’s target)
Off Track (against this year’s target)

1.4 Direction of Travel 

Improving (on last quarter)
No Change (on last quarter)
Declining  (on last quarter)

Page 25



4

4

PART 2 – PERFORMANCE BY STRATEGIC PRIORITY

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 1 – INCREASE CONFIDENCE & SATISFACTION

2.1.1 Highlights and Exceptions

How we compare – The below tables show how Rochdale’s current performance on 
‘CS1 Police and local Council dealing with ASB and Crime’ and ‘CS3 Influence on 
local priorities’ compares with that of our Neighbouring Boroughs across Greater 
Manchester.

Police and local Council dealing with ASB and Crime – Divisional Breakdown

Division Quarter 1
2015/16

Quarter 2 
2015/16

Quarter 3 
2015/16

Quarter 4 
2015/16

% pt 
variance 
from Q2

Greater Manchester 66% 65% 65% Nil
North Manchester 71% 69% 67% -2.0%
South Manchester 54% 54% 54% Nil
Salford 72% 72% 73% +1.0%
Tameside 63% 62% 61% -1.0%
Stockport 66% 66% 65% -1.0%
Bolton 65% 64% 63% -1.0%
Wigan 61% 61% 60% -1.0%
Trafford 73% 74% 73% -1.0%
Bury 69% 67% 66% -1.0%
Oldham 71% 64% 63% -1.0%
Rochdale 71% 71% 68% -3.0%

Influence on local priorities – Divisional Breakdown

Division Quarter 1
2015/16

Quarter 2
2015/16

Quarter 3
2015/16

Quarter 4 
2015/16

% pt 
variance 
from Q2

Greater Manchester 54% 54% 54% Nil
North Manchester 56% 53% 52% -1.0%
South Manchester 50% 50% 48% -2.0%
Salford 55% 55% 56% +1.0%
Tameside 52% 52% 52% Nil
Stockport 52% 55% 57% +2.0%
Bolton 52% 53% 54% +1.0%
Wigan 45% 44% 44% Nil
Trafford 65% 65% 65% Nil
Bury 60% 61% 62% +1.0%
Oldham 50% 49% 50% +1.0%
Rochdale 58% 58% 57% -1.0%

Page 26



5

5

2.1.2 Action Plan Update

Throughout Q3 publicity has been undertaken in relation to the 
seasonal Safe4Autumn Treacle Campaign; providing key safety 
measures and promoting diversionary activities throughout the peak 
Halloween/Bonfire Night period for anti-social behaviour.
Promotion for the campaign consisted of a webpage on the council 
website, a successful social media campaign, e-newsletters for 
schools, posters and leaflets and a video presence in Number 1 
Riverside.  Key messages were around attending organised bonfires 
and promoting the Good Guys Scheme. 
Following the success of the campaign a round –up press release 
with key outcomes was distributed to local press and promoted via 
social media.

Quarter 3 also saw promotion focussed around community cohesion 
campaigns. Engagement events took place across the borough for 
Hate Crime Awareness Week in October. These were promoted via 
press release to the local media and on the council’s social media 
accounts. Messages promoting how to report hate crimes and what 
hate crimes are were also sent out on social media account 
throughout the week.
The communications team covered the Active Citizen’s art project 
commemorating Interfaith Week on 16th November. This was 
covered in the local media and online.

In November publicity was undertaken for the launch of the new 
domestic abuse programme ‘Programme Strive’. This received 
some positive coverage including an interview on Revolution radio.

In Q3 we have also conducted publicity around alcohol and legal 
highs. 
During Alcohol Awareness Week (16th – 22nd November) promotion 
work for the conference was undertaken as well as an intensive 
social media campaign directing residents to our website and 
community engagement sessions for help. We also created a video 
interview with a service user talking about his experiences and 
recovery (https://www.facebook.com/rochdalecouncil/videos ).
An information postcard has been developed and distributed to 
community venues providing residents with referral information. A 
video has also been shared on social media (available here 
https://www.facebook.com/rochdalecouncil/videos ). Initial feedback 
shows a decline in the usage of legal highs across the borough, 
which will be promoted via a local press release.

During Quarter 4 the way in which we communicate and engage with the public as a 
partnership will be a key focus. A plan will start to be developed for the Safer 
Communities Partnership. The communications team will also be developing a 
communications plan to support and promote the work of the Partnership 
Enforcement Team (PET). More promotional work will also be undertaken in relation 
to Dry January, Hate Crime Awareness, Holocaust Memorial Day and Domestic 
Violence amongst other campaigns.

Page 27

https://www.facebook.com/rochdalecouncil/videos
https://www.facebook.com/rochdalecouncil/videos


6

6

PRIORITY 1: INCREASING CONFIDENCE AND SATISFACTION

Indicator Title
Best 

outcome 
low or high

Actual 
2013-14

Actual 
2014-15

Target 
2015-16

Q1 April-
June 
2015

Q2 
July-
Sept 
2015

Q3 
Oct-
Dec 
2015

Q4 Jan-
Mar 
2016

Year
End

Status 
(against 
15-16 
target)

Direction of 
travel 

CS1 – To increase the percentage of 
people who agree that the Police and 
Council are dealing with the anti-
social behaviour and crime issues 
that matter to people in their local 
area

High 75% 72% Increase 71% 71% 68%

Off target Declining

CS2a – To increase the percentage of 
people who feel safe outside in their 
local area during the day and at night

High 99% 98% Increase 98% 98% 98%

On target No change

CS2b – To increase the percentage of 
people who feel safe outside in their 
local area during the day and at night

High 83% 83% Increase 84% 83% 83%
Just off 
target No change

CS3 – Increase the number of people 
who feel they can influence decisions 
made in their area

High 66% 58% Increase 58% 58% 57%
Just off 
target Declining

 

P
age 28



7

7

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 2 – REDUCE CRIME

2.2.1 Highlights and Exceptions

 The total of theft crimes reduced notably in quarter 3, good news given that it 
takes in the Christmas period and run-up to it

 Although domestic burglary volumes remained fairly similar, we saw a good 
reduction in non-domestic burglary figures

 After a sharp rise in vehicle crimes in quarter 2, numbers fell back to more usual 
levels in quarter 3

 Violent crime numbers remained fairly static this quarter  

2.2.3 Reducing Crime – how we compare

These tables show our current performance on RC9, RC10, RC11, RC12, RC13 and 
RC14 compares with that of our neighbouring Boroughs across Greater Manchester. 

RC 9 – Reduce the total number of victim based crimes recorded
Borough Oct-Dec 2015 Oct-Dec  2014 No of 

crimes
% 
change

North Manchester 8109 7374 +735 9.06
South Manchester 6511 5733 +778 11.94
Salford 4279 3594 +685 16.00
Tameside 4000 3636 +364 9.1
Stockport 4412 3809 +603 13.66
Bolton 5269 4524 +745 14.13
Wigan 5040 4544 +496 9.84
Trafford 3148 2801 +347 11.02
Bury 2784 2785 -1 0.03
Rochdale 4305 3863 +442 10.26
Oldham 4511 4284 +227 5.03
Greater Manchester 52368 47070 +5298 10.11

RC 10 – Reduce the total number of theft crimes recorded

Borough Oct-Dec 2015 Oct-Dec 2014 No of 
crimes

% 
change

North Manchester 4975 4452 523 10.51
South Manchester 3872 3412 460 11.88
Salford 2217 1842 375 16.91
Tameside 2102 1967 135 6.42
Stockport 2441 2222 219 8.97
Bolton 2816 2561 255 9.05
Wigan 2578 2492 86 3.33
Trafford 1859 1716 143 7.69
Bury 1613 1549 64 3.96
Rochdale 2163 1909 254 11.74
Oldham 2360 2327 33 1.39
Greater Manchester 28996 26544 2452 8.45

Page 29



8

8

RC 11 – Reduce the total number of violent crimes recorded
Borough Oct-Dec 2015 Oct-Dec 2014 No of 

crimes
% change

North Manchester 1905 1682 223 11.70
South Manchester 1549 1159 390 25.17
Salford 938 750 188 20.04
Tameside 1069 904 165 15.43
Stockport 1039 806 233 22.42
Bolton 1459 1018 441 30.22
Wigan 1270 1033 237 18.66
Trafford 740 530 210 28.3
Bury 686 702 16 2.33
Rochdale 1222 930 292 23.89
Oldham 1227 1099 128 10.43
Greater Manchester 13104 10631 2473 18.87

2.2.4 Action Plan Update

Police, Council and partners ran Operation Dark Nights through the winter months, an 
annual initiative to prevent levels of domestic burglary increasing. This has been 
supplemented by Operation Elf, our annual initiative to provide advice and reassurance to 
the public in order to reduce levels of theft and other forms of low-level crime in the run 
up to Christmas

In November, we launched Programme STRIVE, an initiative aimed at providing early 
intervention and support in response to ‘standard risk’ domestic violence incidents 
reported to the Police. STRIVE involves trained PCSOs and partner agency colleagues 
paying visits to those involved in such incidents to provide advice and signposting into 
services and support that may help in dealing with issues that may have been behind the 
incident, and may alleviate further incidents occurring. 

Negotiations are ongoing with providers with a view to launching a behaviour change 
programme for perpetrators of domestic abuse from April 2016. 

The Partnership Enforcement Team has continued with further phases of Operation 
Retriever, tackling human trafficking and modern slavery, and has also hosted an ‘open 
morning’, where it showcased its work to an audience of about 50 people from across 
GM along with Councillor Ali, Councillor Emsley and our MP. The PET also spoke of their 
work at Informal Cabinet and have bene invited to speak about it at a national conference 
in London in March.  

The PET has also carried out a week of action with colleagues across GM aimed at 
raising awareness of, and tackling, those engaged in illegal money lending. Plans are in 
place for a further week of action focused on modern slavery and trafficking in March. 

Page 30



9

9

PRIORITY 2:  REDUCE CRIME & VULNERABILITY

Indicator Title
Best 

outcome low 
or high

Actual 
2013-14

Actual 
2014-15

Target 
2015-16

Q1 April-
June 
2015

Q2 July-
Sept 
2015

Q3 Oct-
Dec 
2015

Q4  
Jan-Mar 

2016

Year to 
date

Status 
(against 
14-15 
target)

Direction 
of travel 

RC9 – Reduce the total number of 
victim based crimes recorded

Low 13906 15298 Reduce 4295 4638 4305 13238
Off target Improving

RC10 - Reduce the total number of 
theft crimes recorded – Total of 
below 8 crimes

Low 7826 8097 Reduce 2307 2406 2163 6876
Just off 
target Improving

1248 1465 Reduce 427 436 427 1290 Off target Improving

1273 975 Reduce 318 317 246 881 Just off 
target Improving

1650 2045 Reduce 555 630 572 1757 Off target Improving
1152 1060 Reduce 227 300 249 776 On target Improving
2004 2156 Reduce 512 607 528 1647 On target Improving
223 207 Reduce 42 58 54 154 On target Improving
45 46 Reduce 12 12 12 36 Just off 

target No change

 Domestic Burglary

 Non-domestic Burglary

 Vehicle Crime

 Shoplifting

 Other Theft

 All Robbery

 Robbery (Business)

 Robbery (Personal)
178 161 Reduce 30 46 42 118 On target Improving

RC11 – Reduce the total number of 
violent crimes recorded

Low 2939 3781 Reduce 1075 1273 1222 3570
Off target Improving

Note: Victim based crimes includes: Violent crimes, sexual offences, theft offences, robbery, criminal damage and arson offences 

P
age 31



10

10

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 3 – REDUCE THE HARM CAUSED BY DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

See appendix D for target definitions

Highlights and Exceptions - Drugs

Following an 18 month decline in numbers in drug treatment, (DA1) has now ceased, we have now seen 
an increase for 5 consecutive months.  

DA 5: Reduce the Drug related (Class A) offending rate

PERIOD OFFENDERS OFFENCES COHORT SIZE % COHORT
ROCH  ALL 

OFFS % ALL OFFS

YEAR 13/14 191 513 528 36.17% 15147 3.39%

YEAR 14/15 189 526 528 35.80% 16654 3.16%

2015 QTR 1 78 135 528 14.77% 4071 3.32%

2015 QTR 2 61 120 528 11.55% 4119 2.91%

2015 QTR 3  45 69 528 8.52% 4594 1.5%

2015 QTR 4       

YEAR 15/16 113 324 528 21.40% 12784 2.53%

DA5 shows that there have been 69 offences committed by 45 offenders during quarter 3.  This accounts for 
9% of the cohort.  Although quarter one saw an increase the past 2 quarters have seen it fall to the lowest rate 
since the measure began in 2013, bringing us back on track to see an annual improvement. What is most 
significant is that the total number of offences in Rochdale has increased meaning that only 1.5% of offences 
this quarter were committed by this cohort.

How we compare with Greater Manchester
This table shows how our performance currently compares with that of our neighbours across 
Greater Manchester.  This data is now the revised measure – baseline being full year 2014-15 
and latest period Year to December 2015 (for all drug types). 

 Borough Number in 
treatment 
(14/15)

Number in 
treatment 

Trend from 
14/15

Number 
successful 
completions 

Successes 
as 
proportion

Trend in 
successful 
completions

Bolton 1628 1628 0% 216 13% 
Bury 675 667 1% 115 17% 
Manchester 3131 3103 1% 409 13% 
Oldham 1074 1092 1.5 214 19.5% 
Rochdale 1223 1276 4% 162 13% 
Salford 1156 1205 4% 277 23% 
Stockport 931 930 0% 120 13% 
Tameside 1093 1060 3% 85 8% 
Trafford 742 706 4.5% 225 32% 
Wigan 1580 1607 1% 283 17.5% 

DA1 aim is to reduce the rate of decline (this was 10% decline last year) and be on a par with 
other GM areas. We have halted the decline and in fact have seen the greatest improvement 
in numbers in treatment.  Proportionate successful completions rates are on a par with most 
areas – however Trafford and Salford are performing much better in this area.  The service has 
been tasked with promoting recovery for those in long term treatment.

Page 32



11

11

How we compare – perceptions This table shows how our current performance on ‘DA 4 
Perception of Drug use/dealing’ compares with that of our neighbouring Boroughs across 
Greater Manchester.

Perception of Drug use/dealing – Divisional Breakdown
Division Quarter 1

2015/16
Quarter 2
2015/16

Quarter 3
2015/2016

Quarter 4
2015/2016

% pt 
variance 
from Q2

North Manchester 19% 20% 21% +1.0%
South Manchester 14% 14% 15% +1.0%
Salford 11% 11% 11% Nil
Tameside 13% 13% 14% +1.0%
Stockport 9% 8% 8% Nil
Bolton 12% 11% 12% +1.0%
Wigan 11% 12% 12% Nil
Trafford 3% 2% 2% Nil
Bury 9% 8% 7% -1.0%
Oldham 16% 15% 16% +1.0%
Rochdale 11% 10% 11% +1.0%
Greater Manchester 12% 12% 12% Nil

3.3.2 Highlights and Exceptions – Alcohol

Some really positive news is that DA 10, Alcohol related Hospital admissions have fallen again. 

This is a significant 22% improvement on the same 6 months in 2014 and has seen a continued fall now 
for 4 consecutive quarters.  Across GM – 8 of the 10 areas have seen a fall (except Tameside and 
Stockport) – however Rochdale’s improvement is much greater than any other area.

We are now starting to see an improvement in the numbers engaging in alcohol treatment 
when several areas are seeing a decline in numbers.  However, even though we have already 
exceeded the performance for all 2014/15 we are still off track to achieve this years target. 

How we compare with Greater Manchester
The table below shows that Rochdale is comparable with other areas of Greater Manchester in 
treating Alcohol clients (includes alcohol and non-opiate users).  The figures relate to the latest 
12 month data (to end Dec 2015).  

Borough Number in 
treatment 
2014/15

Number in 
treatment 
(rolling)

Number 
successful 
completions

Successes as 
proportion of numbers 
in treatment

Bolton 779 735 305 41.5%
Bury 421 409 133 32.5%
Manchester 1883 1631 427 26%
Oldham 844 790 381 48%
Rochdale 675 774 265 34%
Salford 753 823 417 50.5%
Stockport 795 717 268 37%
Tameside 802 626 221 35%
Trafford 707 610 336 55%
Wigan 991 1081 411 38%

There is great fluctuation in performance across the boroughs.  Rochdale has seen the 
greatest improvement in numbers (13%) this year and Tameside greatest fall (22%).  The 
fluctuation in numbers clearly impacts on proportional closures, with only Salford seeing 
improvements in both areas.  As with drugs clients Trafford are excelling in completion rates.  
Rochdale are underperforming on completions, however this is improving.

Page 33



12

12

3.3.3 Action Plan update (Quarter 2 2015/16)

Adult Drug and Alcohol Treatment

 The Pathways Treatment provider has actively engaged with a growing cohort who has been 
identified as addicted to prescribed and over the counter medication, prominently benzodiazepines 
and pregabalin/gabapentin. This initiative is proving very popular within GP surgeries & is starting to 
produce encouraging results, engaging 79 such users into treatment so far this year.

 An Alcohol Awareness Conference took place during Alcohol Awareness Week in November, 
receiving 97% good or excellent feedback from delegates and positive media coverage.

 Public Health staff and Pathways Treatment staff have in partnership begun to access private gyms 
in the area to deliver safer sex (free condoms) and steroid harm minimisation advice. More such 
activity is planned

 The psychoactive substances working Group has concluded its work having dramatically reduced 
incidents of concern in the borough and raised awareness of the harms of such substances

Recovery and re-integration Service 

 Volunteer 2 training course has been launched with Asdan Awarding Body.  Twelve volunteers 
completed Volunteer 1 training and are now enrolled on the level 2 training course.

 High Level and MIND launched a joint social group in Middleton MIND Café which is operating on a 
weekly basis.

 There has been a new intake on the NVQ training and Service Users have started NVQ Customer 
Service training. 

 Recovery event hosted at Champness Hall attended by Partners and service users

 18 volunteers and service users rewarded with a ghost walk trip/pantomime visit promoting visible 
recovery in the community

 NOCN  awarding body  is  set to deliver accredited training ranging from pre- entry to level 2 
qualifications 

 Forward  together café is now open seven days a week  offering a wide  range  of  snacks and  
drinks 

Young people’s Service 

 Don’t be a zombie app is fully operational and available for all to access
 Community township funding( Pennines)  has generated an increase in referrals from young people 

by carrying out  assertive out reach 
 Early Break  are working closely with the lottery fund to secure some further funding for  

development of more social media apps for young people 
 In partnership with Pathways  Early break  have  now completed training for NPS the training 

feedback has been extremely positives from attendees

Page 34



13

13

PRIORITY 3: REDUCE THE HARM CAUSED BY DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

Indicator Title
Best 

outcome 
low or 
high

Actual 
2013-14

Actual 
2014-15

Target 
2015-16

Q1   
April-

June 15

Q2 July-
Sept 15

Q3 Oct-
Dec 15

Q4 
Jan-
Mar 
2016

Year to 
date

Status 
(against 
target)

Direction of 
travel from    

13-14

DA1 - Number of adult drug users (all drug types) 
recorded as receiving treatment – target to reduce 
the rate of decline and monitor performance in 
comparison to other GM areas

High 1414 1225 >1200 1191 1218 1276 1263
On track Improving

DA3 – (PHO 2.15)  Increase the proportion of ALL 
drug users who successfully complete treatment 
and do not represent within 6 months 

High 16.0% 13.4% Increase 13% 12.3% 12.9% 12.9%
Off track Improving

DA4 - Reduce the percentage of the public who 
perceive drug use or dealing to be a problem in 
their area

Low 11% 11% Decrease 11% 10% 11% 11%
On track Declining

DA5 - Reduce the rate of drug-related offending 
(2013 cohort now 528) 

Low 513 offences 
by 191 
offenders 
(36%)

526 offences 
by 189 
offenders 
(36%)

Reduce 
<36%

13% 12% 8.5% 21.4%
On track Improving

DA6 - Increase the number of substance misusing 
Young People to have received an effective 
treatment intervention’

High 196 206 196 127 159 191 191
On track Improving

DA7 - Increase the number of clients to have 
received an effective treatment intervention for 
alcohol misuse (Now using Rolling year figure)

High 987 687 987 671 708 774 774
Off track Improving

DA8 – Reduce the percentage of people who 
perceive drunk or rowdy behaviour to be a 
problem in their area

Low 6.0% 5% Decrease 5% 4% 5% 5%
On track Declining

DA9 – (PHO 2.18) Reduce the rate of hospital 
admissions per 100,000 for alcohol related harm

Low 754.35
(+3.76%)

718.21 
(-4.79%)

Reduce 154.03
(-0.6%)

Due 
December 
15

Q2 just 
release
d)

293.65

DA10– Reduce the number of substance specific 
hospital admissions of Young People 

Low Alc 21 
Drugs 131

Alc 8
Drugs 105

Reduce Alc 2
Drugs 19 

Alc 5
Drugs 14 
(Aug)

Alc 1
Drugs7 
(NOV)

Alc 8
Drugs 
47

P
age 35



14

14

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 4 – PREVENT AND TACKLE ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

2.4.1 Highlights and Exceptions

 Anti-social behaviour incidents reduced markedly during Q3. Although this is generally in line 
with usual trends each year, it is nevertheless noteworthy. 

 Criminal damage and arson incidents were also down, though the higher figures recorded in 
Qs 1and 2 will mean that we will end the year with a small overall increase on last year.

 A similar picture can be seen with deliberate primary fires. The number recorded in Q3 has 
fallen, though the Q1 and Q2 figures mean that we will end the year slightly up on last year 

2.4.2 Action Plan Update

Prevention 
Youth Services have continued to provide an extensive programme of diversionary activities in 
particular over Halloween / Bonfire period. The Alleygating Project has implemented 7 schemes 
in Q3 and have a further 12 schemes ready to gate which will minimise issues around anti-social 
behaviour.  

Intervention & Support 
Q3 has seen a reduction in referrals to CIG (9 referrals) however Q2 saw an unprecedented level 
of referrals due to a group referral of street drinkers.  Referrals came from GMP and Housing 
providers.

Through the CIG multi agency forum the following actions were undertaken
 8 warning interviews undertaken
 1 Acceptable Behaviour Contract (ABC)
 1 tenancy warning
 1 referral to ASB legal Action Threshold Panel for consideration of formal legal action.  

In addition perpetrators were referred to the relevant support agencies identified eg.  
8 YOT prevention, 4 child care services, 2 Early Break, 1 Firesmart, 1 complex families, 1 sunrise 
team.

Enforcement 
In Q3 2 cases were heard by the ASB Legal Action Threshold panel for consultation prior to 
submitting to Court.  1 Criminal Behaviour Order was secured at Court.

Vulnerable Victims / Witness of ASB 
13 new referrals to the multi-agency ASB Risk Assessment Conference for high risk victims 
of ASB in Q3 which remains consistently higher than previous year.  

Page 36



15

15

The  Campaign aimed at preventing, tackling and protecting against anti-social 
behaviour, criminal damage and harm reduction during the Halloween and Bonfire period was 
successfully implemented in Q3.   Initial local performance figures are detailed below.  We are 
awaiting the Greater Manchester evaluation currently being prepared by GMF&RS.

Outputs:-
 GMF&RS visited - 48 primary schools and 12 secondary schools for KS3 pupils (inc. 

Brownhill PRU) = 1945 Students
 Youth Services delivered workshops in youth centres, mobile bus and outreach sessions
 ASB Team ran Treacle themed ASB awareness sessions with young people subject to 

Youth Referral or Rehabilitation Orders
 21 joint visits undertaken to premises registered to sell fireworks (14 traders signed up to 

Good Guys Scheme)   
 3 Local Authority organised bonfire / firework events were held within the Townships  
 GMP additional patrols in hotspot locations / peak times / Specific ASB operations
 10 under age sales surveys for Fireworks - resulting in no sales 
 Continued use of ASB process to provide early intervention and support 

Outcomes:-
 6.4% reduction in ASB
 35% reduction in Youth ASB 
 7.5% reduction in Criminal Damage  
 15 Deliberate Primary Fire incidents - increase of 3
 52 Deliberate Secondary Fire incidents - decrease of 18
 no recorded incidences of hostilities towards firefighters

How we compare – Criminal Damage & Arson

These tables show how our current performance on criminal damage and arson compares with that of 
our neighbouring Boroughs across Greater Manchester. 

Criminal Damage and Arson
Borough Oct-Dec  2015 Oct-Dec  2014 No of 

crimes
% change

North Manchester 1023 809 214 20.91
South Manchester 884 794 90 10.18
Salford 1012 824 188 18.57
Tameside 736 629 107 14.53
Stockport 812 633 179 22.04
Bolton 865 743 122 14.10
Wigan 1024 867 157 15.33
Trafford 483 416 67 13.87
Bury 410 413 3 0.72
Rochdale 734 809 75 9.27
Oldham 821 694 127 15.46
Greater Manchester 8804 7639 1165 13.23

Page 37



16

16

How we compare – Anti-social behaviour

Anti-social behaviour
Borough Oct-Dec  2015 Oct-Dec  2014 Incidents % change
North Manchester 4666 4252 414 8.87
South Manchester 3307 3308 1 0.03
Salford 2341 2249 92 3.92
Tameside 2697 2626 71 2.63
Stockport 2830 2739 91 3.21
Bolton 2900 3065 165 5.38
Wigan       3130 3490 360 10.31
Trafford 1636 1447 189 11.55
Bury 1613 1670 57 3.41
Rochdale 2364 2542 178 7.00
Oldham 2780 2945 165 5.60
Greater Manchester 30,620 30561 59 0.19

How we compare – perceptions This table shows how our current performance on ‘ASB1 
Perceptions of High ASB’ compares with that of our neighbouring Boroughs across Greater 
Manchester. 

Perception of High ASB – Divisional Breakdown
Division Q1 2015/16 Q2 2015/16 Q3 

2015/16
Q4 2015/16 % pt variance 

from Q2
North Manchester 7% 7% 8% +1.0%
South Manchester 4% 4% 4% Nil
Salford 2% 2% 2% Nil
Tameside 3% 3% 3% Nil
Stockport 2% 1% 2% +1.0%
Bolton 4% 3% 3% Nil
Wigan 2% 2% 3% +1.0%
Trafford 1% 1% 1% Nil
Bury 2% 1% 1% Nil
Rochdale 2% 2% 2% Nil
Oldham 4% 3% 3% Nil
Gtr Manchester 3% 3% 3% Nil

NB – this measure uses data that relates to those categories of ASB that are included in the question 
asked of residents in the GMP Neighbourhood Survey and also used in the British Crime Survey. These 
include: rowdy & inconsiderate behaviour, abandoned and burnt out vehicles, littering, noisy neighbours, 
solvent abuse and drinking on the street 

Page 38



17

17

PRIORITY 4: PREVENT AND TACKLE ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

Indicator Title
Best 

outcome 
low or 
high

Actual 
2013-14

Actual 
2014-15

Target 
2015-16

Q1 
April-
June 
2015

Q2 July-
Sept 
2015

Q3 Oct-
Dec 
2015

Q4 Jan-
Mar 
2016

Year to 
date

Status 
(against 
14-15 
target)

Direction of 
travel 

ASB1 - Reduce the percentage of 
people who perceive there to be high 
levels of anti social behaviour in their 
area 

Low 3.0% 2% Reduce 2% 2% 2%
Just off 
target No change

ASB3 - Reduce the number of anti-
social behaviour incidents recorded by 
the police in the Borough

Low 12091 11515 Reduce 3293 3162 2364 8819
On target Improving

ASB4 - Reduce the number of criminal 
damage incidents recorded by the 
police in the Borough

Low 2582 2600 Reduce 741 762 734 2237
Off target Improving

ASB5 - Reduce the number of 
deliberate secondary fires recorded in 
the Borough (per 10,000 population)

Low 34.09

704 fires

24.78

512 fires

27.94

577 fires

8.72

180 fires

6.25

129 fires

4.40

91 fires

19.37

400 fires
On target Improving

ASB6 - Reduce the number of 
deliberate primary fires recorded in the 
Borough (per 10,000 pop)

Low 8.57

177 fires

6.73

139 fires

6.54

135 fires

2.18

45 fires

1.94

40 fires

1.69

35 fires

5.81

120 fires Off target Improving

Notes: 

P
age 39



18

18

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 5 – PREVENT OFFENDING BY CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE

 Jul 11 to Jun 12 Jul 12 to Jun 13

YOT N
um

be
r i

n 
co

ho
rt

# 
R

eo
ffe

nd
er

s

# 
R

eo
ffe

nc
es

O
ffe

nc
es

/o
ffe

nd
er

%
R

eo
ffe

nd
in

g

N
um

be
r i

n 
co

ho
rt

# 
R

eo
ffe

nd
er

s

# 
R

eo
ffe

nc
es

O
ffe

nc
es

/o
ffe

nd
er

%
R

eo
ffe

nd
in

g

Rochdale 262 119 413 1.58 45.4 194 80 250 1.29 41.2

2.5.1 Highlights and exceptions

Re YP3, in terms of the overall NEET cohort, the rate for December 2015 was 4.1%, which was 
the target figure for the commissioned provider to attain. The quarterly figure of 4.2% is slightly 
below the 4.3% target, which is due to the shortfall in November which has now been rectified. 

Of this overall cohort, of those leaving Further Education to become NEET the quarterly target 
was 83 young people; this has been successfully achieved, with just 66 young people leaving FE 
to become NEET. 

In terms of the worst performing wards (West Middleton and West Heywood), the NEET rate is 
7.0% against a target of 6.2%. The quarterly figure is 7.3% against a target of 6.2%. There are 
three wards (West Middleton, West Heywood and Hopwood Hall) that are above the target for 
December.  The commissioned provider is already looking at how they deploy staff across the 
borough to ensure that these wards receive additional resources, while trying to make sure that 
any changes to not adversely affect other wards

2.5.2 Action Plan Update

Rochdale Youth Forum and Heywood Youth Forum hosted Question Time Events providing an 
opportunity for young people to raise a range of local issues to a panel of key decision makers.

4556 young people from across the Borough took part in the  Make Your Mark Survey, the UK 
Youth Parliament ballot  to decide on the 5 topics  to be discussed by MYPs at  the annual sitting 
in the House of Commons.

Rochdale young people said that the top 5 issues were:
Living wage: Everyone should be able to live comfortably. Everyone aged 16 or over should be 

paid at least the Living Wage.

Fund our Youth Services, don’t cut them: Youth services provide us with vital support, 

development opportunities and positive activities.

Transport: Make public transport cheaper, better and accessible for all.

Tackling racism and religious discrimination, particularly against people who are Muslim 
or Jewish: All young people should work together to combat racism and other forms of 
discrimination, and ensure we know the dangers of such hatred.

Page 40



19

19

Curriculum to prepare us for life: Schools should cover topics including finance, sex and 

relationships and politics in the curriculum

Page 41



20

20

PRIORITY 5: PREVENT OFFENDING BY CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

Indicator Title

Best 
outcome 

low or high

Actual 
2013-14

Actual 
2014-15

Target 
2015-16

Q1 April-
June 
2015

Q2 July-
Sept 2015

Q3 Oct-
Dec 2015

Q4 Jan-
Mar 
2016

Year to 
date

Status 
(against 
15-16 
target)

Direction 
of travel 

YP1 – To reduce the level of re-
offending by young people

Low 43.0% 43.7% Reduce 41.2 43.8 47.3 47.3
Off track Declining

YP2 - Reducing the number of young 
people who are first time entrants to 
the Youth Justice System 

Low 85 113 Reduce 26 36 25 87
On track Improving

YP3 - Reducing the percentage of 16-
18 year olds not in education, 
employment or training (NEET)
NB: subject to outcome of D of E data review

Low 5.0% 4.5% Reduce 5.0% 5.7% 4.2% 4.2%

On track Improving

YP4 - Ensuring that numbers of 
custodial sentences are proportionate 
to the overall number of young 
people’s convictions 

Low 8.9%

20/225

8.85%
(avg)

Decreas
e 

2/55
3.6%

5/48
10.4%

1/38   
2.6%

5.53%

On track Improving

YP 5 - Ensuring young people's 
participation in positive activities    

High 4498
contacts
22.26%
2594
participant

12.84%

4677
Contacts
23.15%
2630 
participants
13.02%

Increase Contacts
9.54%
1928yp

Participants
4.43%
894yp

Contacts 
13.75% 
equates to 
2777yp
Participants 
6.69% 
equates to 
1352 yp

Contacts 
16.38%, 
equates to 
3305 yp
Participants 
8.84% 
equates to 
1705yp

YP 6 – Increase the percentage of 
young offenders engaged in suitable 
education, employment or training 
(EET).

High 123/183

67.2%

40/45

88.9%

Increase 37/41
90.2%

40/50
80%

35/60  
58.3%

Off track Declining

Notes: * this comparison is with same quarter last year, to give a truer representation, as Q1 tends to be typically higher than the following three 

P
age 42



21

21

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 6 – REDUCE ADULT RE-OFFENDING

2.6.1 Highlights and exceptions

The following table provides figures for completion of Orders and requirements by those offenders 
under the management of the Community Rehabilitation Company (CRC) from April 2015 to date. 

Order. Orders 
Commenced 
since Apr 2015.

Number 
Revoked 
/Terminated.

Number 
Successful 
Completions.

% Successful 
Completions.

Ongoing.

Drug Rehabilitation 
Orders.

38 3 5 62.5% 30

Alcohol Treatment 
Requirement.

47 0 11 100% 36

Women’s WISER 
Requirements.

8 6 0 0% 2

Orders 
Completed 2015

Number 
Revoked 
/Terminated.

Number of 
Successful 
Completions 
2015.

% Successful 
Completions 
2015.

Neutral 
Completions 
2015.

Overall Successful 
Completions for 
Orders/Licences (inc 
PSS)

366 95 271 74.04% 11

Orders 
Completed 2015

Number 
Revoked 
/Terminated.

Number of 
Successful 
Completions.

% Successful 
Completions.

Neutral 
Completions.

Women’s Overall 
Successful 
Completions for 
Orders/Licences (inc 
PSS)

57 14 43 75.44% 3

Orders 
Completed 2015 
Q3

Number 
Revoked 
/Terminated.

Number of 
Successful 
Completions.

% Successful 
Completions.

Ongoing 
cases (live 
current).

Intensive Community 
Orders (since 
commencement) 110

21 4 14 78% 43

Page 43



22

22

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 6 continued 

The following table provides current detail of performance of the NPS in relation to their key indicators:

Cases supervised (current caseload, minus cases sentenced since 01/01/2015)

Community cases 297
Custody cases 301
Total cases 598
 
Successful completions

NSOG Completions (Sex offender rolling programme)

Successful outcome 4
Neutral outcome 1 revoked (unworkable)
Unsuccessful outcome 2 revoked – fail to complete on other requirement 
Total completions for period 7

MAPPA cases reviewed in quarter 2

Level 2 cases
Level 3 cases
Total cases

Community orders 14 successful of 19 – 73%
4 unsuccessful
1 neutral

Licenses 14 successful out of 25 – 56%
11 unsuccessful
0 neutral 

Total successful completions 28

Page 44



23

23

STRATEGIC PRIORITY 7 – DEVELOPING COMMUNITY COHESION

2.7.1    Highlights and exceptions

The number of Hate Crime incidents reported during this quarter appear to have reduced, but 
when compared to the same period in 2014/15 it is considerably higher. A number of initiatives to 
rasie awareness of the need to report Hate crime and the different methods in which people can 
do so have taken place during this quarter. 

New and revised performance indicators have been developed to monitor the number of Channel 
referrals, open cases and closed cases.  During this quarter  there  were  4 open cases however 
by the end of the quarter Rochdale Borough had 2 Channel open cases.

Consultation was also undertaken on the Channel Panel Policy with the key stakeholders 
through Rochdale Borough’s Prevent Steering Group and Rochdale’s Channel Panel.  This 
Policy will be placed in the Policy Centre and arrangements will be put in place to raise staff 
awareness of this policy.

An audit has been undertaken by RBSAB and RBSCB to assess the arrangements which 
agencies have in place to meet the new Prevent Duty.  The findings of this audit are currently 
being analysed and a report is being prepared.

2.7.2    Action Plan Update

There were only two occasions when the Consequence Management process was required 
during this period, namely:

 Cronkeyshaw Bonfire 
 Interfaith Milad celebrations

The Cohesion Hub monitored these tensions and worked with partners across the Police and 
Community to implement a trigger plan and engage with the public to mitigate tensions. A full 
tension monitoring report for this quarter is available. 

In addition to this, the Cohesion Hub facilitated the following activities during this quarter:
 Hate Crime awareness week
 WRAP 3 training (Workshop to Raise Awareness of Prevent) in schools
 10th November 2015 - Active Citizen Arts Project was delivered in partnership with a 

community organisation 
 11th November 2015 - Launch of All Across the Arts ‘Remember Why We Remember’ 

interactive online educational resource project to support existing work on the 
commemoration of WW1

 Joint partnership work with GMP on ‘understanding communities’ has commenced which 
when complete will enable a partnership officers to better understand their communities 
when delivering services. 

 Support of the Community allotment project with Petrus 
 Support of the events team with the Christmas light’s switch on
 24th December - supporting planning of an Interfaith Milad celebration

Page 45



24

24

2.7.3 Hate Crime figures

Indicator Q1
14-15

Q2
14-
15

Q3
14-15

Q4
14-
15

Tot Q1 
15-16

Q2
15-16

Q3
15-
16

Q4
15-16

Tot

Total number of crimes & 
incidents recorded 63 85 78 113 339 141 145 105

Categories of crimes:
 Alternative 

subculture 
 Race
 Sexual orientation
 Disability
 Religion
 Transgender
 No motivation listed

0
56
5
2
0
0
0

1
67
8
2
1
2
0

1
68
5
4
3
0
0

0
96
9
6

11
1
0

2
287
27
14
15
3
0

0
117
14
8

10
0
0

1
121
13
7
9
3
0

0
86
6
8

14
2
0

Crimes by Police 
Partnership area:

INPT1
INPT2
INPT3

23
21
19

34
27
24

41
17
20

52
29
32

150
94
95

57
27
27

63
42
40

39
34
32

NB – total number of each category of crime may not add up to exactly the total number of crimes and 
incidents recorded, as some crimes / incidents have more than one marker attached to them

Page 46



25

25

PRIORITY 7 – DEVELOPING COMMUNITY COHESION 

Indicator Title Best 
outcome 

low or 
high

Actual 
2013-
2014

Actual 
2014-15 Target 

2014-15

Q1 
April-
June 
2015

Q2 
July-
Sept 
2015

Q3 
Oct-
Dec 
2015

Q4 
Jan-
Mar 
2016

Year to 
date

Status 
(against 
15-16 
target)

Direction of 
travel 

CC1 - Percentage of people who 
believe people from different 
backgrounds get on well together in 
their local area

High 88.0% 85% Increase 86% 85% 86% 86% 86%

On track No change

RC14 – % solved rate for hate crime High 62.7% Increase To be replaced by suite of crime outcome 
measures still being developed by GMP

P
age 47



26

26

Appendix A 

CRIME BY WARD

This table gives a picture of the most prevalent crime types across the Borough’s wards. The red shadings highlight the three worst wards for the crime type in each 
quarter, with the green shading showing the three best. 

Total Crime RC9 – Victim Based Crime RC10 - Theft Crimes
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot

Rochdale Central 312 323 307 258 275 251 116 88 117
Bamford 172 173 149 151 162 124 93 106 76
Norden 146 127 102 139 120 95 103 85 44
Spotland & Falinge 263 327 249 225 288 218 96 167 99
Healey 164 155 175 147 139 154 82 72 98
Rochdale Town Centre 444 445 429 373 399 366 203 230 204
Kingsway 400 391 403 355 353 350 178 179 179
Milkstone & Deeplish 322 353 324 258 320 278 134 175 134
Balderstone &  Kirkholt 244 258 250 223 231 208 127 116 93
Castleton 269 275 258 237 256 232 155 136 133
North Middleton 254 226 226 213 189 204 113 104 98
East Middleton 165 205 189 139 183 165 80 94 84
South Middleton 185 177 207 151 161 183 84 88 104
West Middleton 231 231 217 197 194 194 94 97 84
North Heywood 295 380 358 266 339 314 152 168 164
Heywood Town Centre 106 168 60 57 73 48
West Heywood 214 205 175 196 179 154 103 77 75
Hopwood Hall 270 233 293 237 208 249 124 110 122
Wardle & West 
Littleborough 139 127 94 114 112 84 68 58 42
Littleborough Lakeside 136 165 107 125 158 95 75 83 43
Milnrow & Newhey 171 169 188 157 155 162 72 98 87
Smallbridge & Firgrove 268 243 256 241 217 225 121 102 83

                                                                                          

P
age 48



27

27

CRIME BY WARD CONTINUED

RC11 - Violent Crime RC5 – Domestic Burglaries RC6 - Vehicle crimes
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot

Rochdale Central 85 124 82 12 8 22 23 21 35
Bamford 28 31 29 34 39 32 18 25 19
Norden 14 22 19 23 23 11 42 33 16
Spotland & Falinge 65 67 61 18 38 27 28 55 25
Healey 39 46 32 22 24 28 32 28 40
Rochdale Town Centre 130 116 106 1 3 1 15 22 7
Kingsway 75 99 112 33 34 25 64 47 57
Milkstone & Deeplish 76 83 99 38 38 35 38 39 34
Balderstone &  Kirkholt 51 62 62 40 31 27 23 37 26
Castleton 41 68 48 29 15 36 38 36 29
North Middleton 56 49 53 21 8 15 25 21 21
East Middleton 27 47 47 18 7 13 17 16 29
South Middleton 33 35 45 13 22 21 16 22 31
West Middleton 47 52 60 9 8 14 23 39 32
North Heywood 66 92 83 18 15 35 20 45 42
Heywood Town Centre 19 31 1 3 4 8
West Heywood 47 60 48 13 18 14 19 16 20
Hopwood Hall 55 62 57 16 24 24 21 27 38
Wardle & West 
Littleborough 27 23 24 17 7 9 18 18 9
Littleborough Lakeside 25 36 33 9 13 7 24 28 10
Milnrow & Newhey 46 31 37 14 29 14 17 32 33
Smallbridge & Firgrove 68 68 85 29 32 17 23 23 19

P
age 49



28

28

ASB incidents Criminal damage and arson
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Tot

Rochdale Central 205 170 157 47 49 38
Bamford 107 98 58 26 20 17
Norden 80 63 46 12 7 8
Spotland & Falinge 201 195 142 57 43 50
Healey 75 102 47 20 18 20
Rochdale Town Centre 171 152 161 20 18 23
Kingsway 283 267 194 91 70 57
Milkstone & Deeplish 223 216 149 41 47 35
Balderstone &  Kirkholt 210 207 123 37 46 43
Castleton 149 131 120 32 48 43
North Middleton 133 145 141 33 32 44
East Middleton 197 148 114 32 38 28
South Middleton 126 137 127 23 37 28
West Middleton 173 191 134 44 42 40
North Heywood 227 224 164 41 69 61
Heywood Town Centre To follow from GMP 11 24
West Heywood 137 136 106 41 38 31
Hopwood Hall 120 127 109 44 22 65
Wardle & West 
Littleborough 82 86 74 14 29 15
Littleborough Lakeside 105 109 81 23 27 17
Milnrow & Newhey 98 94 72 33 24 36
Smallbridge & Firgrove 191 164 139 40 38 35

P
age 50



29

29

Appendix B

Target definitions

DA1: Number of adult drug users recorded as receiving treatment in a rolling year 
(PHE refreshed measure)

This measure has been revised as the PHE outcome focus is now on outcomes (see 
DA3).  Instead of the complex ‘effective treatment’ measure, the measure is now based 
on actual engagement in treatment and therefore negates the historic 12 month delay.  
Unfortunately in makes it impossible to compare with previous years data.

DA2: Proportion of people assessed for substance dependence issues when 
entering prison who then required structured treatment and have not already 
received it in the community
PHO Indicator 2.16.  The measure informs two areas i.e. identifying the number of 
treatment naive offenders prior to custodial sentences and then to ensure that prison 
services are engaging with them.  Baseline data now available.

DA3 Increase the proportion of all drug Users who successfully complete 
treatment and do not represent within 6 months(PHE refreshed measure)
PHO indicator 2.15i (Opiates) and 2.15ii (non-opiates).  To be classed as successful 
clients must leave the system either treatment complete drug free or treatment 
complete, occasional user (providing the substance is not that which the treatment was 
for).  The measure then monitors the progress and counts those who reengage within 6 
months of closure. The measure is to improve the numbers sustaining recovery

DA 4: Perceptions of drug use or drug dealing as a problem – Neighbourhood 
Surveys  

DA 5: Reduce the Drug related (Class A) offending rate
New LOCAL measure developed for 2012/13 which identified Cohort of offenders (298) 
who when arrested in 11/12 have either tested positive for Class A drugs or were 
arrested for possession of Class A. This cohort is then monitored quarterly to see if re-
arrested.
In addition the cohort is monitored for their engagement with treatment services to see if 
this impacts on the offending rate. 

DA 6: Increase number of substance misusing Young People to have received an 
effective treatment intervention 
Measures the number of substance misusing young people (18 and under) to have 
received a structured treatment intervention for substance misuse (all drugs and 
alcohol) in the year.  

DA 7: Increase number of clients who receive effective treatment intervention for 
alcohol misuse
This measures those in structured treatment at the start of the financial year and adds 
on the new engagements each month thereafter.

DA 8: Perceptions of drunk or rowdy behaviour as a problem - Neighbourhood 
Surveys  

Page 51



30

30

DA 9: Reduce the rate of hospital admissions per 100,000 for alcohol related 
harm 
PHO 2.18 This indicator has changed in 2014 and now only counts those coded with a 
primary diagnosis or an ‘external cause’ secondary diagnosis.  The new measure may 
underestimate alcohol’s part in an admission but will be more responsive to local action 
on alcohol issues.  Historic data has been amended to allow comparison.

DA 10: Reduce the number of substance specific hospital admissions of Young 
People.
Measures the number of admissions into hospital for drug and/or alcohol specific 
conditions i.e. the cause is entirely attributable to substances. This will be broken down 
to either drugs or alcohol. 

PHOF Indicator 2.16 

The PHOF 2.16 indicator determines the proportion of adults starting structured substance 
misuse treatment in prison who had not received it in the community prior to custody. 
The baseline figures are based on those entering custody in the 12 months up to and including 
March 2014 (i.e. those entering prison in 2013/14). 

The partnership break down is based on the Local Authority of residence recorded in the prison 
NDTMS data (at triage). The prison NDTMS data set is matched with the full historic community 
NDTMS data set. Therefore those detainees who had received community treatment prior to 
custody may have done so some time before entering prison or just prior to being detained. 

The data produced by this indicator will require some interpretation but will essentially prompt 
local areas to ask the following questions: 

Where the proportion of individuals from their LA area who have engaged in prison based 
treatment but not had previous contact with community based treatment is high, partnerships will 
need to assess the effectiveness of care pathways for offenders and whether community based 
treatment services are sufficiently responsive to this target group. 

Where the proportion of individuals from their LA area who have engaged in prison based 
treatment but not had previous contact with community based treatment is low, partnerships will 
need to explore why engagement in treatment does not appear to act as a deterrent from re-
offending and further contact with the criminal justice system. 

As yet is not clear whether performance will be measured by improving community engagement 
or not.

Baseline Data

PHE have now provided baseline data by age group and substance used.  They advise that data 
will be provided every 6 months.

171 Rochdale residents were triaged as requiring treatment for substance misuse.  117 (68%) 
had previously received treatment, the majority of whom used opiates and are over 40 years.  
The 54 offenders not known to community services are mainly under 30 and users of non-opiates 
and alcohol.  

Compared to other Greater Manchester Areas we are mid-range for % known to treatment with 
the extremes being Manchester 40% and Tameside 78%.   The Trend of age breakdown and 
substances used are very comparable both Nationally and across GM.

Page 52



Subject: ROCHDALE DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY QUARTER 3 2015/16 PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING REPORT

Status:  Publication

Report to: Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Leader of the Council (and 
Lead for Regeneration)

Date: Wednesday, 16 March 2016
 

Report of: Director of Economy

Author Email:    susan.ayres@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Susan Ayres

Tel: Tel: 01706 925636

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide Members with performance information on the activities of Rochdale 
Development Agency, under taken on behalf of the Council.

2 Recommendations

2.1      The performance information of the RDA for Quarter 3 2015/16 is presented to 
Members for scrutiny.

Reason for recommendation

2.2 To ensure Members undertake their partnership governance responsibilities 
fully by scrutinising the performance of RDA

3 Background

3.1  The RDA has been one of the Council’s strategic partners since 1994. On the 
27th January 2016 the RDA became a wholly owned company with responsibility for 
delivering the borough’s ambitions for physical and economic regeneration, including 
the retention and creation of local employment.

3.2 The RDA’s Business Plan for 2015/16 has 5 strategic objectives:
 Accelerating Business Growth
 Promoting Economic and Employment Growth
 Developing the infrastructure and connectivity necessary for sustainable 

economic growth
 Transforming our Town Centres
 Investing in our Heritage Assets.

3.3 The RDA Business Plan has been underpinned by a Grant Funding Agreement 
that details the core and specific purpose funding for 2015/16. In addition to the grant 
funding, the Council seconds a funded member of staff to RDA to manage the 
business growth and investment activities, and part-funds the dedicated Business 

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



Adviser employed by the Greater Manchester Business Growth Hub.  From April 2016 
the RDA will be funded through a contract for services.

Alternatives considered

  3.4 No alternatives have been considered. The alternative of not reporting on the 
performance of the RDA to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee would create a risk 
that the Council does not carry out its partnership governance responsibilities fully. 
However, future reporting of RDA performance will be as part of the Economy 
Directorate Plan to the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

4 Performance Monitoring.
4.1 Quarter 3 saw good progress on many of the key activities and the majority of 
Key Performance Indicators are on track to achieve the target by the year end. 
Detailed progress along with Red/Amber/Green rating is available in Appendix 1.

4.2 Investment enquiry levels remain healthy reaching 186 for the financial year so 
far against a target of 200 for the full year. Eighty seven of these enquiries are from 
potential inward investors and there are currently 71 live enquiries. In quarter 3, the 
RDA assisted 3 inward investors and 3 expanding local companies. Five of the 6 
companies benefited from incentives provided by the Council and four are receiving on-
going support from the Greater Manchester Business Growth Hub. One of the 
successful expansions is Nomical, an IT business, which has relocated to the former 
Zen building on Mossbridge Road in Rochdale from the council-owned managed 
workspace at Lock50, and is creating 13 new IT jobs.  By quarter 3, 232 jobs have been 
safeguarded from RDA assisted enquiries and 130 new jobs are planned to be created. 
Currently performance appears behind target but there are several enquiries due to 
come to fruition in quarter 4 which should mean that the annual target should be 
achievable. 

4.3 The RDA continues to broker relationships between companies and partners 
including local training providers to ensure maximum local economic benefit. In quarter 
3 the annual target of 50 was exceeded by 13 referrals. Another measure of economic 
interest in the borough is the number of businesses that have relocated here without 
assistance of the RDA. By quarter 3 there had been 59 such businesses which show 
the borough’s attributes continue to generate investment interest.

4.4 Good progress continues on Kingsway Business Park:
 WCCTV have moved into their new 12,000sq ft. premises.
 The £18.5m Plot H (216,000sqft) speculative development is underway with 

the steelwork installation commencing in November 2015 – making the new 
unit highly visible from the M62.

 Planning permission was secured for the £18m deal on Plot K to build 4 
new speculative units of 35, 45, 55 and 75 thousand square feet, and work 
commenced in January 2016. 

 David Wilson Homes have now sold 125 houses out of 167.

4.5 Speculative development interest remains strong in other parts of the borough 
with   95,000sqft of development on Hareshill Business Park in Heywood, 145,000sqft 
and 67,000sqft of development on Heywood Distribution Park - all due to complete in 
early 2016.

Page 54



Other indicators of investor and development confidence in the borough are evident 
through other projects and enquiries that the RDA has been involved with including:

 The majority of vacant space in the remaining offices on Crown Business Park 
have been occupied by 3 new companies; Greenage UK, Fortis and AC 
Ventilation, leaving a small area of vacant space available which is currently under 
offer, 

 Investor and developer interest is still growing, but available sites are now 
becoming constrained or tied up by other developers. The RDA is working with the 
Council’s estates team to identify any council sites that could be developed. 

 PIN Properties has continued with a major refurbishment of the former Woolworths 
unit in Castleton and negotiations continue with a potential end user.

 M&S and Next have been announced as anchor tenants in the new Genr8 Town 
Centre East retail scheme. 

 RDA has secured an agreement between Genr8 and the Council on the updated 
legal agreements for the Town Centre East scheme and since quarter 3, these 
have been signed.

 Agreement with the Ministry of Justice for the relocation of Trillium from Telegraph 
House into the old Post Office in Rochdale was reached in late December 2015. 
Trillium is due to vacate Telegraph House by the 1st July 2016. 

 A Heritage Lottery Fund bid was submitted in December 2015 for the 
refurbishment of the Town Hall

 Following securing planning consent for the phase 1 works to Warwick Mill an 
investor event took place in China in October 2015, attended by Steve Rumbelow 
and Cllr Peter Williams.

4.6 A small number of projects or activities are experiencing some delays or have 
issues preventing satisfactory performance include:

 It has proved difficult to attract a retail operator to plot U or V on Kingsway 
Business Park to date but this is still being pursued. Similarly, specialist property 
agents are still advising that the market for sites for high quality hotels is showing 
little demand.

 Castleton Railway Sidings – due to the uncertainty of the plans to be submitted by 
Harris Lamb on behalf of Tata Steel, the site owners, it is not possible to know 
what land may be available for the relocation of Riley. As an interim move, Rileys 
relocated from Bury to Heywood on a 5 year lease. Rochdale Council was able to 
provide some grant support to help facilitate this.

 Low Carbon energy generation schemes – the proposed wind turbine at 
Broadshaw Farm is no longer viable due to the reduction of the Feed-In Tariff and 
land costs. However, there is another opportunity at Birch Industrial Park which is 
being pursued. Inward investment enquiries for energy schemes continue to come 
forward but so far none have been attractive in terms of new job numbers and 
impact on neighbouring areas.

Appendix 1 provides further detail on the progress and achievement of inward 
investment activity and projects with commentary on the latest status.

5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.

Page 55



6  Legal Implications

6.1 The report is for information and scrutiny purposes and as such there are no 
significant legal implications arising from the report. The RDA continues to work 
with Legal Services on all major projects and legal advice and support is provided 
as and when necessary.

7 Personnel Implications

7.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

8 Corporate Priorities

8.1  The function undertaken by the RDA on behalf of the Council contribute to the 
Place and Prosperity elements of the Corporate Plan by improving the infrastructure, 
creating the conditions for sustainable growth and supporting the creation of new jobs. 
The activities also form a key part of the borough’s contribution to the Greater 
Manchester Growth and Reform Plan.

9. Risk Assessment Implications 

9.1 There are no specific risks for Members to consider arising from this report
9.2 The RDA finances are independently audited and reviewed by the RDA Board and 
copies provided to the Council, along with a risk schedule.
9.3 All delivery risks are assess at the programme or project level and reported to 
Members as appropriate.

9. Equalities Impacts

9.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no (significant) workforce equality issues arising from this report.

9.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no (significant) equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 56



APPENDIX 1
Quarter 3: October 2015 – December 2015  

BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVE  SO1 – ACCELERATING BUSINESS GROWTH 

Key 
Priority 

No
Target/Action Lead Timing Progress •••

To improve the productivity & competitiveness of local companies through targeted business support

1.1 Assistance to Local Businesses
 Continue to deliver 

quarterly networking 
events with the Chief 
Executive and/or the 
Leader

 Issue monthly business 
newsletter to share 
information

 Assist local businesses to 
relocate/expand within the 
borough – annual target of 
18

CH

CH

CH

Quarterly

Monthly

Quarterly

 Next event now due early in new year.

 Continue to issue monthly newsletter using 
MailChimp.

 14 businesses assisted in year to date, with 3 in 
Q3.



1.2 Working with the Business Growth 
Hub 

 Attend 2 Team Rochdale 
meetings a year to share 
knowledge and information 

CH

Advisor

Sep15, 
Mar 16

Monthly

 In diary for 27th January. Delay due to contracting 
issues with Growth Hub and BIS.

 Growth Hub now confirmed permanent advisor as 



P
age 57



1

about business activity
 Hub Advisor to attend 

monthly RDA Business & 
Investment Team 
meetings

 Assist company with 
production of growth plans 
– annual target of 60

Richard Perkins, to take effect from 1st Dec.
 50 growth plans completed by the Growth Hub 

advisors in year to date, offering support on a 
range of issues around growth plans and grant 
applications where appropriate.

1.3 Support businesses with external 
finance packages, in particular 
national and regional grants/loans

 Monitor grant applications, 
collating information about 
investment levels and job 
outcomes in line with the 
KPIs

CH Quarterly  Spreadsheet completed on an ongoing basis with 
info regarding successful and pipeline bids.  



1.4 Property Information and Advice
 Provide bespoke property 

information based on client 
needs – annual target of 
200 property enquiries 
handled

 Support clients by 
attending meetings with 
premises owners and/or 
agents

CH Quarterly  168 property enquiries received in year to date 
(Q3 53).

 Continue to work with 71 live enquiries.



1.5 Public Relations and Media
 Offer PR assistance, 

including writing of articles 
and circulation to local 
media outlets

CH Monthly  Press releases issued in conjunction with 
companies where appropriate. 

1.6 Promote and support local supply 

P
age 58



2

chain opportunities 
 Work with STaR to deliver 

one networking meeting a 
year with procurement as 
the main theme

 Support the Oldham & 
Rochdale Construction 
Network by arranging 
speakers with supply chain 
opportunities

 Encourage local 
developers to bring their 
own projects to the 
network, helping them 
meet some of their local 
economic benefit targets

 Support the Scout Moor 
Wind Farm Meet the Buyer 
event in May

CH

CH

CH

CH

Annually

Quarterly

Monthly

    May 
15

 Construction meeting took place in September 
with support from Gleeson Homes and the STaR 
team. 

 Attended meeting and support steering group by 
collating information on forthcoming projects.

 Attended the event and made contact with Turleys, 
consultants leading on the scheme.



To provide a high quality and bespoke investor support service for incoming firms

1.7 Property Information and Advice 
tailored to investor clients   

 Provide bespoke property 
information based on client 
needs - annual target of 
200 property enquiries 
handled (both inward 
investors and existing 
businesses)

 Support clients by 
attending meetings with 

CH

CH

Ongoing  Investment pack in use.
 Total of 168 enquiries received to date, with 26 of 

these from inward investors.

 Many businesses visited and assisted, often with 
property agents.

 11 companies relocated in year to date (Q3 3).



•

P
age 59



3

premises owners and/or 
agents

 Successful inward 
investment projects – 
annual target of 7

1.8 Provision of economic and labour 
market data to 
investors/developers

 Produce quarterly 
summary of Rochdale 
economic and labour 
market data and circulate 
to stakeholders

CH Quarterly  RDA and RBC continue to work with New 
Economy to provide this data.



1.9 Public Relations and Media
 Offer PR assistance, 

including writing of articles 
and circulation to local 
media outlets

CH Monthly  Press releases issued in conjunction with 
companies where appropriate.



To promote the attractions of the borough for new development and pro-actively engage with prospective 
investors, especially within the target sectors

1.10 Working with Property agents
 Work with Insider or Place 

North West to deliver a 
developer forum

 Deliver/support two agents 
briefing events to develop 
awareness and 
relationships

CH

CH

Dec 15

Twice 
yearly

 Proposals received but still being considered – 
likely to be in 2016.



P
age 60



4

1.11 Working with the Property Media
 Work with the Business 

Desk on a Kingsway 
promotion

 Share all press releases 
with the regional media

 Attend the Insider 
Business of Property 
Conference

CH

CH

        
DC

Jun 15

Ongoing

 Kingsway featured in every email bulletin from the 
Business Desk during June.

 All press releases shared with regional and 
specialist media.

 2 staff attended the Insider Conference in May.

•

1.12 Focussed Marketing
 Advertising Kingsway on 

Business Desk website 
and daily bulletin

 Develop targeted 
marketing campaign for 
growth sectors

CH

CH

Jun 15

Jul 15

 Complete – increase in June of around 25% of 
visits.

 Initial work undertaken.



1.13 Social media communication
 Undertake staff training for 

social media in the 
workplace

 Develop strategy for public 
and business facing social 
media including mobile 
websites, Twitter and 
LinkedIn

CH

CH

Sep 15

Oct 15

 Further training undertaken in October – Linkedin 
& Hootsuite / Twitter.

 Link strategy work to training and develop plan 
after delivery – aim for January launch.



To support local employment, recruitment & skills development activities at the borough levels

1.14 Helping existing employers 
through advice and referrals

 annual target of 50 
referrals to partner support 
agencies

CH Quarterly  Total of 67 referrals made in year to date (Q3 7) – 
many companies referred to more than one 
partner. These include MAS, UKTI, A2F and 



P
age 61



5

Growth Hub.
1.15 Supporting agencies that recruit 

Rochdale residents 
 Ensure new job 

opportunities are shared 
with delivery partners to 
maximise local job 
opportunities 

CH Quarterly  ELP staff attend monthly team meeting.  
Where they are unable to meet a need, they share 
vacancies with commercial organisations.



1.16 Developing skill levels 
 Liaise with the Rochdale 

Skills Advisor to share 
information

 Link the Skills Gateway 
website to the RDA and 
Kingsway websites

CH

CH

Quarterly

Jul 15

 Meeting took place in June with advisor and Bus & 
Invest team staff. 

 Skills Gateway funding expired at end of 
September and we are yet to understand new 
offer.



1.17 Promote apprenticeships to 
Businesses 

 Ensure team are up to 
date with current 
apprenticeship offer and 
are able to signpost to 
Rochdale Council lead 
officer .

CH Quarterly  No referrals this quarter, however RDA took on an 
Apprentice starting in January. 

P
age 62



6

BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVE SO2 – PROMOTING ECONOMIC AND 
EMPLOYMENT GROWTH

Key 
Priority 

No
Target/Action Lead Timing Progress

To maintain the momentum of development at Kingsway Business Park as a major mixed-use development area

2.1  Successfully implement a 
development aid 
programme to ensure the 
viability of development 
projects to maximise 
investor interest

DC Jul 15  The Council and Wilson Bowden have agreed the 
principle of a deal for the Council to share the 
letting risk for Plot H. The Agreement was signed 
and sealed in December. A subsequent deal is 
being considered for Plot K. 

•
2.2  Secure 3 developments on 

Kingsway during 2015/16
DC Mar 16  Construction work has now finished on the 

Wireless CCTV building and the company are in 
the process of relocating, which will be completed 
prior to the end of 2015.

 David Wilson Homes obtained planning permission 
in March 2015 for a scheme for 68 new homes on 
land between The Hornet pub and their current site. 
On their current site 125 out of 167 houses have 
already been sold and occupied.

 Construction work at Plot H is ongoing for a 
216,000 sq ft warehouse (known as “Kingsway 
216”) with completion scheduled in Summer 2016.

 Planning permission has been granted for 4 
speculative units on Plot K totalling 200,000 sq ft 
and work is expected to commence in early 2016.

•

P
age 63



7

2.3  Commence construction of 
200,000 ft2 unit on Plot H 
by end of summer

DC Sep 15  See note in section 2.2 above.

•
2.4  Work with JD to promote 

the business

 Secure JD’s future growth 
by additional land 
purchase, and

 Support JD’s internal 
expansion

RD
RD
RD

Mar 16
Jun 15
Mar 16

 2 Press releases have been issued for JD Sports 
since April. RDA will re-engage with JD Sports after 
their Christmas trading peak. 

 JD Sports have advised that initial design work on 
their new building is likely to commence in early 
2016.

 The installation of further mezzanine floors at JD 
Sports existing building means their total floorspace 
is now 1.4m sq ft.

•

2.5  Pursue a retail operator for 
Plot U or Plot V

 Develop a hotel investment 
strategy for Kingsway

DC
DC

Mar 16
Sept 15

 Discussions are ongoing with Lidl but the current 
position is they are not looking for a site in the 
Kingsway area at present. We continue to pursue 
alternative retailers.

 The hotel strategy is being discussed with the 
Kingsway agents who have advised that there is 
little demand for high quality hotels at present, but 
that this will be reviewed in the first quarter of 2016.



2.6  Resolve land issue with 
Kingsway Park High 
School and RBC Legal

 Develop a Masterplan for 
Plots M & V

DC

RD

Sept 15

Mar 16

 The Kingsway land (part of Plot M) can no longer 
be offered to the Kingsway Park High School Trust 
as there is a pre-emption agreement in place 
between the Council and WBD. The school has 
now been offered another piece of land which it has 
accepted.

 Initial work has commenced on a Masterplan for 
plots M & V and will continue in 2016.



2.7  Secure the S106 
contribution from David 
Wilson Homes Phase 2 
development to pay for the 

RD Mar 16  Planning permission was granted in March 2015 for 
68 units. The s106 agreement makes provision for 
funding the Kingsway Link bus service for 15/16. 
The first payment is due in February 2016 or when 

P
age 64



8

Kingsway Link and assist 
with the commencement of 
development

David Wilson Homes make a start on site, 
whichever is the earlier. DWH will be reminded of 
this commitment in January 2016.

 Discussions are ongoing with JDS and Asda 
regarding a contribution towards the 16/17 bus 
service and we await confirmation from TfGM that 
the service will operate with the same level of 
subsidy in 2016/17.



To progress the improvement & development of the borough’s other business parks & major employment sites

2.8  Work with Crown Business 
Park to promote the 
available land and vacant 
property via the database 
and through an agents’ 
event

CN Mar 16  Greenage Utilities have taken a 5,800 sq ft office 
building in Phase II, and the three smaller offices 
have been taken by Fortis Trading, Loneworker 
Solutions and AC Ventilation meaning the offices 
are now completely let.

 There are two smaller sites remaining for possible 
buildings but no interest as yet.



2.9  Work with Preston 
O’Herlihy to promote the 
new 95,000 ft 2 speculative 
unit at Hareshill Business 
Park to potential occupiers 
via the database and 
through an agents’ event

CN Mar 16  Work on the building commenced in September 
2015 and the steelwork is close to being erected on 
site. 

To maintain and support the sustainable renewal and modernisation of the borough’s stock of existing employment 
premises

2.10 Stakehill Business Park
 Arrange for the completion 

of the Landscaping 
Contract

 Deliver Occupiers 

RD
RD
RD
RD

Sept 15
Sep 15
Sept 15
Mar 16

 The landscaping works are now complete.
 The Occupiers Briefing is planned for 2016, when 

proposals for signage, the gatehouse and other 
traffic management proposals are sufficiently 

P
age 65



9

Breakfast Briefing
 Present and agree Gating 

Order proposals 
 Implement gating order 

proposals including TRO 
and yellow lining

advanced.
 RDA met with specialist security control 

manufacturers Geoquip (who are based at 
Stakehill) in early December and have agreed the 
design principles to be used for the barrier control 
system. Geoquip have prepared designs and cost 
estimates, and now Highways need to work these 
up into a highway design.  

 Commercial Estates Group are developing their 
signage strategy for the estate. A planning 
application for the first phase of signage has been 
submitted with further applications to follow in early 
2016.   

 Discussions are ongoing with RBC Highways about 
the form of Traffic Regulation required to implement 
double yellow lines across the estate to reduce 
problem associated with truck parking.



2.11 Managed offices and smaller 
industrial workspace

 Work with RBC and private 
property owners to market 
any vacant space through 
the property database

 Promote the development 
of available land through 
the Investment Pack and 
Property Portfolio

CN

CN

Mar 16

Mar 16

 All available space is captured and constantly 
updated to send out to agents, developers and to 
any potential occupiers who enquire about land and 
property.

 The investment pack is available to send out and 
includes a prospectus of sites and the available 
land and property.



2.12 Selective redevelopment of older 
industrial stock 

 Work with property owners 
/ developers and planning 
to determine the 

CN Mar 16  This is carried out in response to developer 
enquiries and work carried out by the strategic 
planning team in RBC. 

P
age 66



10

requirement for 
maintaining employment 
land and property within 
the Borough

 Work with Property owners 
/ developers to establish 
the viability of 
redevelopment of old 
premises or a change of 
use where necessary

 Work with property owners 
and developers to carry out 
refurbishment works on 
three existing commercial 
buildings across the 
Borough

DC

RD

Mar 16

Mar 16

 Done through regular and ongoing meetings with 
agents, developers and landlords and includes 
sites such as Woolworths, Royle Works, units on 
Stakehill, Crown, Hareshill and Heywood 
Distribution Park.

 Hanson Court in Middleton has been refurbished 
and was available from May 2015.

 Planning application approved for the 
redevelopment of former Woolworths building to 
provide high-bay industrial accommodation. Work 
will start in the new year.

 CEG have redeveloped a large 300,000ft2 unit on 
Stakehill in advance of selling it in early 2016.

To promote the development of new build employment premises, including speculative schemes to satisfy 
identified demand

2.13  Provide support and 
demand reports to 
investors or developers 
who are considering 
investment in commercial 
premises in the Borough

CN Mar 16  This is done through regular meetings with 
developers and investors, and also in response to 
enquiries which come through to the RDA.



2.14  Review the take up of 
larger speculative units 
and communicate to 
potential investors/media

 Promote further 
speculative development at 

CN

DC

Mar 16

Mar 16

 A review of the take up is ongoing and shows 
interest in the medium to larger units. A deal is 
close to 2 speculative units in Greater Manchester 
which are close to the Kingsway 216 unit size.  We 
closely monitor the interest in 2 speculative units on 
HDP and Link 95, in addition to the Kingsway units

 Plot H (Kingsway 216) speculative development 



P
age 67



11

Kingsway and other 
locations

has started on site, and Plot K development is 
expected to start in January 2016. RDA will look at 
direct development of spec units in the New Year.

2.15 Creative property solutions to 
mitigate speculative development 
risks

 Establish the principle of 
RBC investing in new 
development

 Secure legal, state aid and 
accountancy advice as 
appropriate

 Commit the first phase of 
the scheme

DC

DC

DC

Jun 15

Jun 15

Oct 15

 The principle of RBC investing in speculative 
development has been established and agreed with 
the Leader and Chief Executive. Legal and state 
aid advice has been secured to confirm the 
process. The first project is Plot H which is now on 
site. Plot K will follow in the new year.



To support the development of a number of major mixed-use area regeneration schemes in selected locations 
outside the main town centres 

2.16 Royle Works 
 Work with West Register to 

agree terms for a disposal 
of Royle Works to a 
developer or occupier  

 Assist the purchaser to 
develop a viable scheme 
which is fitting for a key 
gateway site and does not 
compete with the town 
centre

RD

RD

Dec 15

Mar 16

 Royle Works – currently under control of West 
Register following the owners going into 
administration in the past. RDA have been involved 
in discussions with West Register and potential 
investors and developers to try and influence the 
development plans in line with the Masterplan 
created in 2009. 

 Offers for the site were submitted in May and a 
number of developers had pre-submission 
discussions with RDA. It has been confirmed that 
an offer from a local employer has been accepted. 
They are currently undertaking site investigations. 
RDA has had meetings with the employer to offer 
assistance with the potential scheme and will 



P
age 68



12

continue to engage with them as proposals are 
developed.   

2.17 Castleton Railway Sidings 
 Work with potential 

occupier and the Growth 
Hub to establish a 
business case for funding 
of a new unit 

 Assist potential occupier 
and architect to submit a 
planning application

CN

CN

Mar 16

Mar 16

 RDA’s work to support Rileys, has resulted in them 
taking a unit in Heywood for 5 years while Tata 
resolve their plans for Castleton.

 Harris Lamb (acting for Tata, who own the site) 
working on a revised residential scheme that may, 
or may not, leave land available for the proposed 
Riley facility. 

 Outline planning permission anticipated Quarter 1, 
2016. 

 Riley’s have taken a 5-year lease for an industrial 
unit of 22,000 sq ft in Heywood, which they 
relocated to at the end of 2015 with RBC grant 
support.



To support the activities of the private sector in creating new employment - creating accommodation, especially in 
our main town centres or in locations near to major public transport hubs

2.18 Former Post Office building
 Work with the owners 

(Hurstwood) and agents 
(Nolan Redshaw) to 
identify and promote the 
building to potential 
occupiers. Direct potential 
occupier enquiries to 
agents

CH Mar 16  Building is included on the property database and 
clients are referred to it when appropriate.

 Trillium are due to move into the old Post Office in 
June 2016.



2.19 Newgate House
 Support Tetrosyl to 

implement their planning 
permission, progress the 
highway closures and 

GD Mar 16  The planning application has been approved.  
 The closure order has been confirmed. 
 The occupation of the Holme car park is being 

progressed with Tetrosyl.



P
age 69



13

secure occupation of The 
Holme car park. 

 Tetrosyl intend to occupy the building on a phased 
basis.

2.20  Work with the Town Centre 
Management Company on 
property related matters in 
the town centre to provide 
support and guidance to 
potential investors

 Work with RBC and private 
property owners to 
promote & market any 
vacant space through the 
property database

 Promote the development 
of available land & 
properties through the 
Investment Pack and 
Property Portfolio

CH Mar 16  This work is ongoing.

 This is carried out regularly and will continue 
throughout the year. Enquiries will drop during the 
summer but increase from September. 

 The investment pack is available to send out and 
includes a prospectus of sites and the available 
land and property. This is to be updated to include 
vacant units on all major industrial estates across 
the borough during next quarter.



To identify, evaluate and support regeneration opportunities arising from the disposal of surplus or 
underperforming public property assets

2.21 Reshaping the public property 
estate 

 RDA to attend Council 
SAM, OAM and disposals 
groups

JS Mar 16  RDA are attending and providing input to the 
groups and working with Estates to consider how to 
maximise the income from existing and new build 
property.



2.22 Advising on property disposals 
 RDA to provide 

commercial development 
advice to the Council 
service units as and when 
required.

JS Mar 16  RDA are providing the commercial development 
advice as and when required. 

P
age 70



14

BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVE SO3 – DEVELOPING THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND 
CONNECTIVITY NECESSARY FOR SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH

Key 
Priority 

No
Target/Action Lead Timing Progress •••

Support efforts to physically improve the strategic transport network where this directly helps enable business & 
employment growth

3.1 South Heywood 
 Coordinate the delivery of 

the South Heywood 
initiative

 Coordinate the link road 
planning application for 
submission in the new year

 Coordinate the acquisitions 
and relocations strategy to 
deliver vacant possession 
of the required site or work 
towards a CPO

 Agree heads of terms for 
the legal agreements 
between the Council and 
the landowners/developer

DC

DC

DC

DC

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

Sep 15

 RDA are programme managers for the South 
Heywood programme.

 Design work continues to complete detailed design 
in order that a planning application for the road can 
be submitted in summer 2016. A meeting with 
Counsel in December has resulted in some 
additional design work taking place for the 
alignment. 

 Early discussions with residents have taken place 
and more formal discussions will commence when 
the alignment is confirmed.  Update letters have 
been sent to residents in early December 2015.

 Draft HoT are being produced and are being 
worked on to determine the funding mechanism, 
which is reliant on the costs of the road being 
agreed.



P
age 71



15

3.2 Lincoln Close / Station Gateway
 Secure possession by 

Agreement of the car park 
land required for the new 
road

 Secure agreement from 
HCA on funding for the 
new road

 Work with Highways to 
deliver the highway 
scheme

 Assist Hanson Springs with 
the remarketing of their old 
site at Lincoln Close

RD

RD

RD

CN

Sep 15

Sep 15

Mar 16

Mar 16

 RMBC and RDA are engaged in ongoing dialogue 
with all parties. The principles of a deal have now 
been agreed with only one outstanding issue to 
resolve between the potential purchasers and the 
head lessee directly. 

 HCA require claw back of the sale proceeds from 
the Bradferns Site which was included as a clause 
in the original funding agreement between HCA 
and Rochdale BC.   

 Highways have been asked to programme the 
design work following a cabinet decision in 
February.

 RDA are assisting with all parts of these deals 
which will bring a new company into Rochdale, 
and enable two relocations within the borough.



Support public transport investment and services which improve the connectivity of local residential areas with 
major employment locations, both within the borough and across the City Region

3.3  Work with TfGM to secure 
funding for the Kingsway 
Link for 2016/17

RD Mar 16  Discussions are ongoing with TfGM about the 
continuation of this important service. TfGM has 
completed their tendering process for all DRT (ie 
Ring and Ride) services across Greater 
Manchester and the results of this process are 
expected in January. JD Sports have confirmed 
their financial contribution to the bus service from 
April 2016. Further contributions are being sought 
from other businesses at Kingsway.       



3.4  Work with TfGM to 
promote their Travel 
Choices agenda

 Work with Kingsway 
Transport Consultant and 

RD

RD

Mar 16

Mar 16

 Updated figures from TfGM indicate Kingsway Link 
patronage figures are around 1,800 per month on 
average for 2015. 

 Metrolink patronage has increased to a peak of 
nearly 8,000 trips per month from the Kingsway 



P
age 72



16

TfGM to encourage the 
use of Public Transport on 
Kingsway in keeping with 
the site-wide travel plan

 Support TfGM to 
encourage the usage of 
Metrolink to access 
Kingsway Business Park

RD Mar 16
stop. 

 The Kingsway Travel Plan Coordinator continues to 
work alongside RDA and TfGM to promote public 
transport links and encourage staff to use other 
forms of transport other than the car. JD Sports and 
WCCTV have recently submitted   travel plans.  

 Recent traffic monitoring has shown a 4-5% 
increase in road traffic across the Business Park in 
the last 6 months which is consistent with 
increased construction and development activity.   

Support the progressive development of a high-speed broadband infrastructure covering the wider borough to 
drive future business growth

3.5 BT Outreach Programme 
 Promote the ‘Get Digital 

Faster’ website 
 Promote the Super 

Connected Cities voucher 
scheme and encourage 
take up by local 
businesses

CH
CH

Mar 16
Mar 16

 Rochdale is part of the GM wide Broadband 
programme being led by Transport for Greater 
Manchester with activity already underway across 
the borough.

 Voucher scheme has now closed as all funding has 
been committed by BDUK.



3.6  Work with BT to finalise the 
installation of fibre 
throughout Kingsway

RD Sep 15  BT has confirmed that fibre broadband has been 
installed and businesses can now place orders for 
this. 



Promote the adoption of high environmental standards within the construction & development sectors

3.7  Deliver a launch event for 
the Kingsway Sustainable 
Development Guide 

RD Dec 15  This is being progressed through the Kingsway 
Sustainability Group and a suitable launch event is 
being considered for before March.



Contribute to the development of low carbon energy generation schemes, especially in connection with those 
regeneration schemes that the Agency is helping to deliver

P
age 73



17

3.8  Work with landowners and 
developers to identify a site 
for a low carbon 
development

 Explore any possible 
funding to contribute 
towards the project

 Heads of terms agreed for 
a renewable energy 
scheme

RD Mar 16  The proposed Wind Turbine adjacent to Broadshaw 
Farm is no longer viable with the reduction in FIT 
and the cost of the land.

 Discussions are ongoing concerning a number of 
enquiries for energy schemes  on Kingsway but 
none are very attractive to the business park at 
present (issues include size and scale of the 
building, number of deliveries, and low employment 
levels, plus a requirement to be away from houses 
which limits the available plots).

 A representative of Omega Business Park 
(Warrington) visited Kingsway recently to advise on 
their scheme for generating power by installing 
solar panels on the roofs of the building across the 
Business Park. Discussions are ongoing about 
whether this model may work at Kingsway. 

 RDA will oversee the development of a wind 
turbine at Birch Business Park during 16/17.  



3.9 Promote benefits of physical 
activity, using Kingsway as good 
practice 

 Support the Council in 
delivering the inaugural 
Rochdale Half Marathon 
via Kingsway Business 
Park

 Support private sector led 
events that may want to 
utilise Kingsway Business 
Park 

RD

RD

Sept 15

Dec 15

 The First Rochdale Half Marathon and 10k was 
held in August 2015 and attracted over 1200 
runners. Organisation was by Cannonball Events in 
partnership with Rochdale MBC. Entries are now 
being accepted for 2016 event, which is scheduled 
for 25th September.          



P
age 74



18

BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVE SO4 – TRANSFORMING OUR TOWN CENTRES

Key 
Priority 

No
Target/Action Lead Timing Progress

4.1 Medium Term Strategy
 Produce & distribute a 

revised version of the 
Medium Term Action Plan 
to prioritise & guide the 
comprehensive 
regeneration proposals for 
the town centre

 Provide guidance, 
coordination and support 
to private sector 
development opportunities 
in the town centre 
including Drake Street 
housing and mixed use 
development sites

GD

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The Medium Term Action Plan was endorsed by 
Cabinet in 2013. The plan has been presented to 
the Programme Management Board; Borough 
Regeneration Steering Group; Rochdale 
Township; Town Centre Management Board; and 
the High Street Foundation.

 A full review of the plan is on hold but will be 
undertaken during 2016 when resources allow.



4.2 Programme Management Centre
 Continue to provide of a 

coherent and coordinated 
programme management 
service for all the main 
physical development 
activities within Rochdale 
Town Centre

GD

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The PMC continues to coordinate and monitor the 
town centre programme, including general 
enquiries, communications, project liaison, master-
programme, risks, town centre capital programme 
and Highway Movement Framework. The PMC 
continues to provide a central resource for dealing 
with ad-hoc queries and providing updates, 

P
age 75



20

 Service and prepare 
reports for the Programme 
Management Board on a 
monthly basis and 
coordination of actions 
arising

 Update the established 
programme management 
tools (update notes, 
master-programme, risk 
schedule and time slices) 
on a monthly basis

 Update and implement the 
town centre 
Communications Strategy 
on a monthly basis, 
including implementation 
of the PR and social 
media strategy and 
website 

 Coordinate, monitor and 
provide an operational 
overview of the town 
centre Capital Programme

 Support project delivery 
and liaison with Project 
Managers and 
stakeholders. Provide 
information/updates to 
partner and stakeholder 
meetings

GD

GD

GD

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

including attendance at Rochdale Township 
Regeneration Group, TCM and HSF meetings.

 The town centre website 
www.rochdaletowncentre.com continues to be 
reviewed and updated to provide up to date 
programme information. The Twitter account is 
used to communicate information (the account has 
over 1500 followers).

 The Communications Strategy is being 
implemented jointly between the Programme 
Management Centre and RBC Communications 
Team. The Rochdale town centre leaflet was 
updated and re-printed in late 2015. The leaflet 
has been distributed widely to businesses and 
stakeholders.

 The TCCP monitoring meeting takes place bi-
monthly. 

P
age 76

http://www.rochdaletowncentre.com/


21

4.3 Exchange Shopping Centre
 Hold quarterly catch up 

meetings with the 
Exchange Shopping 
Centre 

 Provide the centre 
manager with monthly 
updates on town centre 
developments  

JS

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The catch up meetings have taken place and the 
November update has been issued to the 
Exchange Centre manager. 

4.4 Public Realm
 Coordinate the delivery of 

a comprehensive package 
of public realm 
improvements across 
Rochdale Town Centre

 Support Rochdale Council 
in delivering the project to 
re-open the River Roch 
within The Butts area, 
revealing the mediaeval 
bridges and creating 
public open space

 Liaise with Rochdale 
Council regarding the 
commission with 
consultants, BDP, to 
coordinate and support the 
delivery of public realm 
across the town centre, 
including the river re-
opening, Baillie Street and 
the external spaces 

GD

GD

GD

Mar 16

Dec 16

Mar 16

 
 A HLF bid has been approved and the river re-

opening work has started on site and hoardings 
have been installed. The work is expected to 
complete in March 2016.

 Options for the prioritisation of public realm 
schemes across the town centre along with 
funding are currently being considered.  This 
includes the delivery of the public realm associated 
with the river reopening.  The outcome of the river 
reopening scheme will influence the delivery of 
other public realm works across the town centre.  

 Consultation on the scheme to re-pave Baillie 
Street and lower Yorkshire Street is complete. The 
TRO to restrict vehicles using Baillie Street and 
lower Yorkshire Street to servicing only has been 
publicised and confirmed.  Detailed design work is 
now underway. External funding is available and 
opportunities to deliver this scheme as part of the 
river re-opening contract are currently being 
considered.  



P
age 77



22

around the Town Hall & 
The Esplanade

4.5 Private Sector Investment and 
Development 

 Monitor enquiries and 
respond in a timely 
manner by meeting 
investors and developers

 Provide bespoke advice 
and information to 
potential developers & 
investors, and bring in 
support from the Council & 
TCM as required  

JHi

JHi

Mar 16

Mar 16

 RDA is monitoring take up of the Business Rates 
Scheme on a monthly basis.  To date seven units 
have been let within the scheme.  A further five 
lettings have taken place (see 4.10).  

 Ad hoc advice to developers & investors is given 
as required.

 Bespoke schedule of available properties 
produced for each enquiry if requested.



4.6 Rochdale Market
 Through the PMC, provide 

support to the relocation 
and establish a permanent 
open-air market within The 
Butts area, immediately 
alongside the reopened 
river, including the 
provision of support 
facilities and infrastructure

GD Mar 16  A project team to take forward the market project 
has been established. The project team will now 
start to consider key operational/delivery issues 
that need to be addressed. 

 Specialist advisors have now been appointed to 
undertake a feasibility study of options for the 
provision of a permanent market in the town 
centre. This will include the delivery 
programme/timescales, phasing options and 
identify costs & funding. 

 Results of this study will be presented in early 
2016



4.7 Office and other uses 
 Promote the take-up of 

other vacant units within 
the main town centre area, 
including the Post Office 

JHi Mar 16  Ad hoc advice given as required working with 
property agents and TCM.

 

P
age 78



23

conversion scheme and 
the vacant unit on the 
ground floor of Number 
One Riverside

 Work with TCM to identify 
retail investment 
opportunities

JHi Mar 16  Ad hoc advice given as required working with 
property agents and TCM.



4.8 Highways Movement Strategy
 Work with Highways to 

develop and obtain 
approval to Phase 2 of the 
Highway Movement 
Framework 

 Support Highways to 
complete the Town Head 
Phase 3 scheme 
improvements

 Support Highways & 
Planning to implement 
new access arrangements 
for the river re-opening 
scheme

 Support Highways & 
Planning to put in place 
the necessary traffic 
orders and highway 
closures needed to 
accommodate the Town 
Centre East scheme 

GD

GD

GD

GD

Dec 15

Mar 16

Dec 15

Mar 16

 
 Townhead Phase 3 work is complete.

 Future HMF schemes are being reviewed, 
including the highways works associated with the 
permanent market and Baillie Street re-paving 
scheme.

 The river re-opening scheme is on site and the 
associated highways works are identified in the 
programme. 

 Progress still needs to be made on the traffic 
orders and highway closures needed to 
accommodate the Town Centre East scheme.  
This will take place in early 2016.



4.9 Station Gateway
 Liaise with Planning & 

Highways on a monthly 
GD Mar 16  The budget is monitored through the TCCP 

monitoring meetings and the programme and risks 

P
age 79



24

basis to identify any 
delays or risks associated 
with the proposals 

 Update the Station 
Gateway programme and 
risk register quarterly and 
report to the Programme 
Management Board 

GD Mar 16
are reported to the PMB.
  

 The updated Station Gateway masterplan is due to 
be considered by Members in  2016. 

4.10 Reuse or empty/under-used 
properties  

 Support the successful 
delivery of the Council’s 
pilot Business Rates 
Discount Scheme 
designed to encourage the 
re-occupation of presently 
vacant retail properties 

 Monitor vacancy levels 
and prepare a report on 
the success of the 
Business Rates scheme 
on a quarterly basis 

 Monitor enquiries and 
respond in a timely 
manner by meeting 
investors and developers

 Provide guidance and 
support to the High Street 
Foundation, TCM and TC 
Steering Group to help 
deliver property related 
objectives 

JHi

JHi

JHi

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

 RDA has launched the pilot business rate discount 
scheme with RBC to help tackle vacancies on 
Yorkshire Street, Baillie Street, The Walk and 
South Parade. Take up from businesses has been 
encouraging, with a number of previously vacant 
properties now let and other businesses in legal 
discussions to let properties.

 The current position as at the end of December is 
that 8 properties have been awarded grants, 
bringing the total of vacant properties that have 
been let to 14 although one additional vacancy has 
arisen in the designated area. There are also 3 
further properties where businesses are in 
negotiation with agent/landlord.

 Signage in the shop windows to advertise the 
scheme have been fitted.

 RDA continue to provide guidance, coordination 
and support to the High Street Foundation/Futures 
Board, TCM and TC Steering Group to provide 
updates and complete any relevant actions.



P
age 80



25

4.11 Site assembly and clearance 
 Secure the relocation of 

the remaining tenant in 
Telegraph House and 
vacant possession of the 
building

 Work with RBC Legal to 
ensure the terms of the 
Development Agreement 
to secure ‘good & 
marketable’ title of the site 
is achieved 

 Confirm with Genr8 their 
proposals for the Bell 
Street site and the Baillie 
Street properties

 Tender the demolition 
contract for Telegraph 
House

LG

GD

GD

JB

May 16

Aug 15

Dec 15

Dec 15

 RDA has agreed terms with Trillium for the 
vacation of Telegraph House and the relocation to 
the ground floor of the Rochdale Post Office 
property. Trillium has also agreed terms with 
Hurstwood for a new lease of the post office 
property. The occupiers of Telegraph House have 
signed off the relocation proposals. Legal 
Agreements have been sent out for signing. 

 The Council has acquired the majority of the TCE 
area with only 1 site not in public ownership (Bell 
Street site). In order to completely satisfy the terms 
of the Genr8 Development Agreement, the Council 
is currently seeking to upgrade its’ Good 
Leasehold title in some areas to Leasehold 
Absolute and also deduce title to all the highway 
land and unregistered land within the development 
area. In order to remove any remaining 
rights/restrictions on the acquired land, RBC Legal 
have made arrangements for the TCE land to be 
“appropriated”. 

 The Bell Street site is still in private ownership and 
discussions have taken place with the landowner 
about the potential development of this site on the 
basis of either a joint venture, implementation 
agreement or alternatively an outright purchase. 
RDA is still waiting for Genr8 to commission 
development plans for this area, to aid further 
discussion with the landowner of the Bell Street 
site.

 The papers for the tender for the demolition of 
Telegraph House are underway and this contract 
will go out to tender once we have confirmation as 



P
age 81



26

to when the building will be vacant, during 2016.
4.12 Temporary use of sites

 Liaise with TCM, RBC 
Events Coordinator and 
Markets Manager to 
identify potential events

 Monitor and record the 
use of the sites for events 
and report any issues to 
the PMB 

JB

JB

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The Baillie Street West car park was closed 
during the Feelgood Festival for four days.

 Several smaller events took place during the 
summer but none required the closure of the car 
park.  



4.13 Bringing forward the Genr8 
scheme

 Review and implement 
new meeting structures for 
the TCE scheme 

 Support Genr8 to progress 
the detailed design 
necessary to submit a 
detailed planning 
application for the scheme 
before the end of 2015, in 
accordance with the 
Development Framework 

 Confirm and implement 
the necessary road 
closure & TRO 
requirements for the 
scheme 

 Confirm the Genr8 
development plans and 
any associated integration 
arrangements with 

GD

GD

GD

GD

GD

July 15

Dec 15

Dec 15

Dec 15

Aug 15

 The announcements regarding M&S and Next 
completing the legal agreements to anchor the 
scheme were made in November 2015.  It is hoped 
to announce the cinema operator in early 2016. 
Negotiations continue with other prospective 
occupiers.  

 RDA and Genr8 are developing a 
masterprogramme for the scheme to include 
approvals, design, CPO, planning, highways and 
public consultation.

 Genr8 have prepared scheme options for the 
layout of the site. The Development Framework 
which defines the design parameters of the 
development (as an alternative to preparing an 
outline planning application) was endorsed by 
Cabinet in March 2015. Genr8 are now 
progressing the scheme design and work towards 
the submission of a detailed planning application in 
2016.



P
age 82



27

Wheatsheaf Centre 
needed to deliver a 
comprehensive scheme

 Finalise the details of the 
TCE scheme and related 
legal & financial matters -

o Ensure the 
requirements and 
clauses in the 
Development 
Agreement are 
satisfied 

o Agree the lease 
arrangements

o Agree the 
approach to 
monitoring the 
development 
including cost 
consultants and 
managing agents

o Confirm the 
revised 
development 
appraisal, cost 
plans and 
commercial 
viability of the 
scheme

 Complete the risk review 
and implement any 
necessary mitigation 

GD

LG

GD

JS

GD

July 15

May 16

Mar 16

Dec 15

Mar 16

 A report was presented to Cabinet in March 2015 
to cover issues such as funding, legals, risks, head 
lease options and planning to enable the scheme 
to be progressed.  Cabinet agreed the approach to 
take further detailed analysis of the options for 
funding be completed in order for decision on the 
funding route to be made in line with delegated 
approvals.  Work continues to assess the options 
to fund the scheme.

 A review of the CPO programme/process has been 
undertaken and work is progressing to mitigate the 
need for a CPO process.

 The Genr8 risk register has been updated.

 Heads of Terms have been agreed with Trillium for 
the vacation of Telegraph House. 

 The detailed contractual agreements with the main 
anchor tenants are complete. The negotiations 
with other prospective occupiers has commenced 
but will take time to complete.

 The proposals for Phase 2 of the scheme have not 
been progressed (the current priority to make 
progress on Phase 1).

 A communications strategy for the scheme has 
been prepared and agreed between Genr8 and 

P
age 83



28

measures
 Acquire any remaining 

acquisitions/land interests, 
including relocation of 
remaining Telegraph 
House occupier

 Work with Genr8 to 
complete the detailed 
contractual agreements 
with the main anchor 
tenants and agree with 
Genr8 the terms of the 
negotiations with other 
prospective occupiers 

 Work with Genr8 to 
confirm the proposals for 
Phase 2 of the scheme 

 Work with RBC Comms 
and Genr8 to prepare and 
implement a 
communications strategy 
for the scheme

RBC. The Comms will be rolled out as and when 
retailers are signed along with a marketing 
strategy.

4.14 Wheatsheaf Centre
 Maintain access for the 

Wheatsheaf Centre 
service vehicles during the 
works   

 Maintain pedestrian 
access to the Wheatsheaf 
Centre

 Achieve Practical 
Completion of the new 

LG

LG

LG

JS

June 15

June 15

Aug 15

Mar 16

 Practical Completion of the new entrance works 
was achieved in September 2015. RDA is chasing 
up outstanding snagging works.

 The Wheatsheaf Deed of Grant for the footpaths 
across the cleared Municipal Offices site has 
been sent out to the owners of the Wheatsheaf 
Centre for signing.

 Discussions have taken place with the 



P
age 84



29

entrance works
 Work with the new owners 

of the Centre to foster the 
effective physical 
integration of the Town 
Centre East project with 
the Wheatsheaf Centre in 
the wider interests of the 
town centre

Wheatsheaf Centre owners.

Middleton Town Centre
4.15 Middleton Shopping Centre

 Hold quarterly catch up 
meetings with the 
Shopping Centre owners 
and manager

JS Mar 16
 Discussions are ongoing with the new Shopping 

Centre Asset Manager for potential new 
investment in the Centre including changes in the 
internal circulation, recladding elements of the 
exterior, small extension/reconfiguring retail space 
and improvements to exterior vehicle access.



4.16 Fountain Street
 Prepare and seek 

agreement from Middleton 
Township members to 
options for the 
regeneration of the area 
through property and 
public realm 
improvements 

 Begin the implementation 
of the agreed property and 
public realm 
improvements using 
capital programme funding   

JB

JB

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The Glenbridge scheme is not being pursued at 
the request of Members.  Glenbridge are unhappy 
with the situation and threatening legal action. 

 Capital Programme funding (£500k) for public 
realm and property improvements is available for 
the ‘triangle’ properties.  Options were prepared 
and reported to Middleton Members and final 
plans, including costs, are going back to members 
in January.

 Design works for the paving elements is underway 
and type of paving has been agreed. 



4.17 Public Investment in the Central 
Area JB Mar 16  RDA are working with the Council officers involved 

P
age 85



30

 Work with the Council to 
seek to maximise 
investment in the town 
centre, including future 
schemes funded through 
the Council’s capital 
programme

 Engage with the Middleton 
Township Regeneration 
Group to monitor 
investment opportunities

JS Mar 16

with Middleton town centre to maximise the on-
going investment.  The paving works will use the 
same contractors and materials as the Long Street 
Scheme and share overheads to reduce costs. 

 RDA regularly attend the Group to update 
Members and monitor opportunities.



Heywood Town Centre
4.18 Mossfield School

 Provide guidance, 
coordination and support 
to the Council to facilitate 
development of the site

LG Mar 16  An offer has been accepted for a retail/leisure 
development scheme on the site and the legal 
agreements are currently being progressed.

 The offer is conditional upon the site being 
developed out (in accordance with the planning 
brief for the site), in a specific timeframe.



Littleborough Town Centre
4.19  Work with Carlisle IT to 

locate an alternative site 
for development and 
assist with discussions 
with potential retail 
operators for their existing 
site

CH Mar 16  RDA continue to work with Carlisle IT.



P
age 86



31

BUSINESS PLAN OBJECTIVE 5 – INVESTING IN OUR HERITAGE ASSETS

Key 
Priority 

No
Target/Action Lead Timing Progress •••

5.1 Rochdale Town Hall
 Project coordination of the 

physical works to the 
building through the 
‘transform it’ working 
group, including restoration 
& repair works, design of 
space for new uses, 
adaptation works, on-going 
maintenance programme 

 Arrange and manage 
monthly ‘transform it’ 
workstream meetings with 
relevant Council services 
and partners to agree and 
implement short term 
works 

 Monitoring of expenditure 
and budget under the 
Capital Programme

 Prepare and update 
phasing & action plans for 
the short term works 

JHi

JHi

JHi

JHi

JHi

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The cross-service project group led by RDA 
continues to meet monthly to co-ordinate 
workstreams including maintenance, restoration 
and adaptation works.

 Works recently completed include the restoration of 
the Council Chamber (including new PA system, 
carpets, heating and lighting), a full survey of the 
roof, installation of new boilers and replacement of 
the existing lift.  

 Feasibility plans for the replacement of heating, 
electrical and IT services have been also 
completed. 

 The next phase of works will include a ‘mini-refurb’ 
of bistro and the detailed design for improvements 
to install new toilets & extend the bar and are also 
being undertaken.

 The restoration of the Magna Carta mural will now 
be undertaken as part of the wider restoration 
works, due to the complexity and costs involved 
and the significance as part of the HLF bid.

 Ongoing meetings and work with FoRTH to 
increase engagement with HLF bid.



P
age 87



32

 Undertake engagement 
with English Heritage and 
ROCH & FORTH groups 
on the short terms works 

5.2 Community Consultation
 Deliver a programme of 

public consultation to help 
improve understanding of 
the building and refine 
options for its future use, 
and to support the HLF bid

JHi July 15  A public consultation exercise on the future 
proposals for the building took place between the 
7th and 13th of July to support the HLF bid in 
December 2015. Overall the responses were 
supportive of the plans and restoration.

 The consultation was run in conjunction with the 
Friends group (FoRTH).

•

5.3 Heritage Lottery Fund bid for 
Rochdale Town Hall 

 Prepare and update a 
programme to ensure the 
submission of the HLF bid 
by December 2015. 

 Working with partners and 
stakeholders to manage 
the preparation of a 
Conservation Management 
Plan to support the HLF 
bid

 Arrange and manage 
monthly ‘fund it’ 
workstream meetings with 
relevant Council services 
and partners to identify any 
further funding 
opportunities, including 
other trust fund bids

JHi

JHi 

JHi

JHi

Dec 15

Dec 15

Dec 15

Mar 16

 The report to Cabinet (2nd November) approved the 
submission of the bid and updated Members on the 
progress to date. 

 Since then the bid has been refined and 
discussions with Link4Life, The Co-operative 
Heritage Trust & the Fire Station Museum have 
been undertaken regarding community 
engagement and activity planning. This has helped 
to shape the draft activity plan that is an essential 
requirement of the major HLF bid submission. 

 The bid was submitted prior to the 1st December 
2015 deadline.

 A decision is expected in April 2016 on the Stage 1 
application. If this is successful, there is then a 
period of up to 2 years to submit the 2nd stage bid 
for the full funds. During this time the detailed 
technical designs work will be developed and the 
activity plan developed with the community.

 FoRTH have been fully involved in the process and 



P
age 88



33

 Maintain effective 
engagement with ROCH & 
FORTH groups

if successful will help develop the second stage bid 
to HLF. They will continue to volunteer and engage 
people and the community in their heritage. 

 Coordination is essential to ensure that the work is 
in line with the overall strategic plan for the Town 
Hall and not harm the proposed HLF bid. The 
Conservation Management Plan has been 
prepared and will be shared with stakeholders 
following approval to do so at Cabinet.

 Involvement of Historic England (formally known as 
English Heritage) throughout the design stage will 
mitigate any risks of Listed Building Consent not 
being granted. RDA has coordinated recent 
meetings with HE officers and they have expressed 
written support in principle for the plans. There will 
be further dialogue as the detailed technical design 
work takes place.

5.4 Warwick Mill
 Liaise with the Warwick 

Mill investors to support 
and understand their 
proposals

 Work with RBC Planning 
and the Warwick Mill 
investors to influence the 
design of the scheme.

 Provide commercial advice 
on the scheme to 
Middleton members.  
Provide advice on the 
development process and 
market demand to help 

RD

RD

RD

Mar 16

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The scheme is focussed on a business showroom 
model, which will allow Chinese businesses to 
showcase their products to a UK/European market. 
G-Suite (the owners) wish to be operational at 
Warwick Mill by December 2016.

 A planning application and accompanying listed 
building consent have now been approved for the 
conversion of Warwick Mill and the demolition of 
London House. 

 G-Suite hosted an investor launch event in Beijing 
in early November. This generated significant 
investor interest including 19 potential tenants.

 Representatives of G-Suite visited Middleton and 
Rochdale Borough in November.



P
age 89



34

foster the long-term 
success of this major 
regeneration scheme

 Work with the Hong-Kong 
based investor / developer 
and MIDAS to integrate the 
project into Greater 
Manchester, Rochdale 
Borough and Middleton TC 
in particular and to 
optimise the wider 
economic development 
benefits of this substantial 
inward investment

 A marketing and communication programme is 
being developed jointly between G-Suite, RDA and 
Rochdale BC.

 Demolition of London House is expected in 
February 2016 with works to convert the Mill 
commencing in March 2016.   

5.5 Former Rochdale Fire Station
 Provide support to RBC 

Planning on property and 
investment matters to help 
maximise the regeneration 
potential of the building as 
part of the Station Gateway 
project 

JB Dec 15
 A meeting has been held with the Fire Service 

Museum to discuss their HLF funding application 
and links with the Town Hall.

 The Fire Museum staff attended the consultation 
day on Sat 11th July at the Town Hall.



5.6 River re-opening
 Support Rochdale Council 

in delivering the project to 
re-open the River Roch 
within The Butts area

 Provide updates to the 
town centre PMB to 
identify any key risks 
associated with the   
project, such as funding 

GD

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

 The scheme is on site and is expected to complete 
in Spring 2016.

 The budget is monitored through the TCCP 
monitoring meetings. 

 The programme is reported to the PMB.



P
age 90



35

issues, delays and 
constraints on delivery

5.7 Heritage Areas
 To support Rochdale 

Council planning and 
Conservation officers to 
develop sustainable 
development proposals for 
other heritage assets such 
as Rochdale TC 
Conservation Area, 
Middleton THI area, 
Middleton Tonge Hall and 
Hopwood Hall College 
listed buildings

JHi Mar 16  Planning for the improvement of the public realm in 
the wider conservation area around the river re-
opening is being undertaken with RBC.

 Work with the Conservation team to prioritise 
activity and funding is ongoing. A report will be 
taken to Cabinet in the spring to set the priorities 
for investment in heritage across the borough.

 Met with CLP / E ON and RBC conservation officer 
to review the proposed replacement street lighting 
proposals to ensure it does not harm the 
conservation area and heritage of the town centre.



5.8 Baillie Street
 Identify a short term plan of 

action for maintaining 17A-
21 Baillie St and securing 
temporary uses pending 
the TCE scheme

 Manage any necessary 
repair and improvement 
works to the buildings to 
improve marketability 
pending the TCE scheme 

 Agree with Genr8, English 

JB

JB

GD

Mar 16

Mar 16

Dec 15

 Available to let first floor of 19 Baillie Street.
 21 Baillie Street has now been vacated by 

Shopmobility, however the Market Manager is now 
using the whole building.

 21 Baillie Street is part of the town centre east 
development area and only available for short term 
lets which limits the potential for reuse at present.



P
age 91



36

Heritage and the Planning 
Service the plan of action 
for the 17A-21 Baillie St 
buildings and the Bell St 
site

P
age 92



37

Key Performance Measures 

Performance 
Measures 
2015/16
 

Business 
Plan 
Target 

Cumulative 
Performance 
(current Q ) 

Status


 

Commentary

No. of companies 
directly assisted with 
growth plans 

60 50 (0)  The Business Growth Hub had to retender for the delivery of Business Support during the last quarter resulting in a reduction in client 
interaction. New advisor appointed wef 1st December.

No. of successful 
inward investment 
projects relocating 
into the borough 

7 11 (3)  This includes Rileys who have relocated from Bury and are currently refurbishing the Flying Scotsman.

No. of local 
companies 
successfully 
relocating/expanding 
within the borough 

18 14 (3)   Includes Nomical who have relocated into the old Zen Internet building on Mossbridge Road.

No. of jobs 
safeguarded by 
companies assisted

350 232  Figures are spread across a number of businesses.

No. of jobs created by 
companies assisted

250 130  Data gathered from some businesses, but still awaiting figures from others.

Total level of public 
sector investment 
spent on projects 

£9m Information collated annually.

Total level of private £22m Information collated annually.

P
age 93



38

sector investment 
leveraged-in by 
projects
Key Activity 
Indicators

   

Amount of new-build 
floorspace (m2) in 
projects assisted by 
RDA (includes mixed 
use schemes) 

35,000 - Information collated annually.

Amount of floorspace 
(m2) converted or 
refurbished in 
projects assisted by 
RDA (includes mixed 
use schemes) 

10,000 - Information collated annually.

Total number of 
enquiries received & 
handled by RDA 

200 186 (71)  Number of enquiries remains buoyant, with 71 of the 186 (38%) of these coming from outside the borough.

No. of inward 
investment projects 
relocating into the 
borough (but not 
registered as RDA 
clients) 

15 59 (13)  Data collated via EGi which lists recent property deals across the borough. Evidence that the property market remains buoyant. 

No. of companies 
referred to partner 

50 63 (3)  Some companies have been referred to more than one agency depending on their needs. Referrals have been made to The Growth Hub, 
Employment Links and the Manufacturing Advisory Service. The MAS service was withdrawn by central government wef 30th November. 

P
age 94



1

support agencies Referrals this quarter have also been affected by the Business Growth Hub tendering process.

Key to RAG symbols

Red Indicates - target not achieved or experiencing critical delays or the project is not now proceeding.

Amber  Upward arrow 
indicates - project still has some issues to resolve but is improving, possibly nearing completion.

 Across arrow indicates 
- there are some issues preventing satisfactory performance and/or is experiencing some delays.

 Downward arrow 
indicates -

there are issues with the projects performance and it is not performing as well as expected and/or is 
experiencing significant delays.

Green Indicates - target achieved/completed or performing well.

P
age 95



Page 96

Agenda Item 7



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Document is Restricted

Page 110

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	SummaryOFinterests

	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2015/2016
	WP2
	WP3

	4 Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership - Monitoring - Quarter 3 - 2015/16
	RSCP 2

	5 Rochdale Development Agency Quarter 3 - 2015/16 - Performance Monitoring Report
	RDA 3

	7 GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool
	GMCA-AGMA 12-2-16

	9 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2015/2016 (Appendix 4)

